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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market desighed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of SK Target Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best
of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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OUR MILESTONES
B ERE

The Group had experienced a special year. The shares of SK Target Group Limited (the “Shares”) were successfully
listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange on 19 July 2017. The day that sets a new page on SK Target Group’s
history.
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Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual results of SK Target Group Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 May 2017.

The Company was successfully listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange on 19 July 2017 (the “Listing Date”). | would like to take
this opportunity and thank the professional parties and our staffs
involved in the listing.

For the year ended 31 May 2017, the revenue of the Group increased
by approximately 0.9% as compared to the financial year ended 31
May 2016. The revenue generated from the manufacturing and
trading of precast concrete junction boxes decreased by
approximately 1.7% while the Building Material and Services Business
Segment increased by approximately 19%.

During the year ended 31 May 2017, the overall market condition of
the precast concrete junction box industry (i.e. the industry in
relation to the manufacturing of both precast concrete
telecommunication junction box and precast concrete electrical
junction box) in Malaysia was relatively stable and is expected to
maintain steady growth in the coming years. Looking ahead to the
coming years, although certain challenging factors such as labour
shortages and dependency on foreign workers, and rising production
and transportation costs may exert pressure on the Group’s business
operations, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the overall
business prospects.

To optimise the Group’s competitive advantages, in the future, the
Group intends to continue and to accelerate the implementation of
its strategies, namely (i) expansion of the Group’s production
capacity to meet the increasing future demand for precast concrete
junction boxes in Malaysia; (i) expansion of the Group's business
vertically by acquiring companies which manufacture junction box
covers and other accessories in Malaysia; and (iii) diversification of
the customer base for the Group's precast concrete
telecommunication junction boxes and its precast concrete electrical
junction boxes by penetrating its sales into other regions of Malaysia.
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Following our successful listing on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange in July 2017, the Group has established a strong capital
platform which will be conductive to taking the Group's business to
the next level.

During the Year, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, hamely
Target Precast Industries Sdn Bhd (“Target Precast”) entered into a
legally-binding Letter of Award with Telekom Malaysia Berhad
("Telekom”), which is a leading telecommunication company in
Malaysia with a history tracing back to 1946, in respect of the supply
and delivery of concrete junction boxes and junction box cover for a
term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. The
formal agreement in this respect had been signed and returned to
the Group on 1 August 2017 (the “Formal Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Formal Agreement, Target Precast was appointed as
a supplier to Telekom up to a total sum of approximately RM21.4
million during the term of the Formal Agreement.

In addition, the continued government interest and investment to
expand power distribution, telecommunication, civil infrastructures
coupled with the development of new commercial, industrial, and
residential areas remains the key drivers and opportunities for the
precast concrete telecommunication junction box and electrical
junction box manufacturing industry in Malaysia. In view of the
continuous growth of the precast concrete junction box industry, the
Directors are optimistic about the operating environment in Malaysia.

The Directors are also looking for appropriate investment
opportunities, especially on the vertical integration opportunity.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRBES

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all shareholders
and Board members for their support and efforts to the Group. | also
express my sincere gratitude to our customers and business
partners for continued support, as well as to my colleagues and
staffs for all their dedication, loyalty and contribution to the Group.

Loh Swee Keong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 August 2017
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The Group manufactures and sells precast concrete
telecommunication junction boxes and precast concrete electrical
junction boxes under our brand of “Target” in Malaysia. The Group's
precast concrete junction boxes are used in (i) telecommunication
and electrical infrastructures upgrade and expansion works; and (ii)
construction projects in Malaysia. They are buried underground to
deter tampering and are used to house and protect a junction with
telecommunication and electrical utility connection and distribution
access points from weather, changing elevation underground and
provide easy access for maintenance.

The Group has been a registered supplier or approved supplier of
various notable telecommunication companies such as Celcom
Axiata Berhad and Telekom Malaysia (“Telekom”) since 2008 and
registered supplier of Tenaga National Bhd. (“TNB"), the only electric
utility company, in Malaysia since 2012. Hence, the Group's precast
concrete junction boxes can be used in infrastructure or construction
projects involving the telecommunication companies and TNB.

For the year ended 31 May 2017, the revenue of the Group increased
slightly by approximately 0.9% due to an increase in the revenue
generated from trading of accessories and pipes and the provision of
mobile crane rental and ancillary services. On the other hand, the
demand for the Group’s precast concrete junction boxes dropped
slightly compared to the previous year. This was mainly due to the
fact that many of the projects of our customers were at their
completion stage and as such the orders for junction boxes were
reducing.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

REBRHRAERERIHE [Target] migiE
HERTEEESRANBRERTENERS -
FEENFARERTIEGEANERATNNE
ERENERARIBERTIR  R()2HEEAR -
TINERNR M T AP IEBE - ARRERE &R
EREERENREERORRIEAR DMK
AB - RERRANMTSEEENTE - WM
BB TTRAEE -

REEB008FEAZRMEEED AW
Celcom Axiata Berhad K& Telekom Malaysia
(TTelekom)) &y i it fE PR Sk AR AT AL FERY - IA
& B 2012 & #8 A& Tenaga Nasional Bhd. ([TNB] -
BRALE—NENAAEEQR) A MEE
e At AEENERRR TEGEARY
NEEARIRTNBHYERIELELIEE o

BE2017F5ANALSFE  aAIREEMREBE
HURRHEBHNEEREE R ERBAEL
FYU AR AN - E A 5 [ B W A SR G5 A4 0.9% o
H—H AEENBRRERLIERINTFRR
BEFEEMTHR - HHETEARKELELH
HEARNTTRER - AUt ERKREMNTEG IR



Looking forward, the Directors consider that the future opportunities
and challenges facing the Group will largely depend on the
construction works for utilities infrastructure and new development
area construction. The Directors are of the view that the continued
government interest and investment to expand power distribution,
telecommunication, civil infrastructures coupled with the
development of new commercial, industrial, and residential areas
remains the key drivers and opportunities for the precast concrete
telecommunication junction box and electrical junction box
manufacturing industry in Malaysia. Further, the Directors expect
that the growth of the Group will be sustained by the Formal
Agreement because it is the first agreement entered directly
between Group and Telekom without the involvement of contractors
or subcontractors, therefore it allows the Group to capture a higher
profile margin in the sales of its precast concrete junction boxes.
With the Group's experienced management team and ability to
deliver a wide range of high quality precast concrete junction boxes,
the Directors consider that the Group is well-positioned to compete
against its competitors, and the Group will continue to pursue the
following key business strategies: (i) expand the Group's production
capacity at the existing production plant located at Lot 1894-A JLN
KPB 5, Kawasan Perindustrian Balakong, 43300 Seri Kembangan,
Selangor (the “Existing Selangor Plant”) and complete the
establishment of the newly established plant in Plot A of land held
GM 865, Lot 2945 in the Mukim Senai District, Kulaijaya, State of
Johor (the “New Kulaijaya Plant”); (ii) acquire of the parcel of land
in Southern Malaysia on which the New Kulaijaya Plant is situated or
a parcel of land in its peripheral area; (iii) continue to expand the
Group’s sales and marketing team; and (iv) expand the Group’s
business vertically in the supply chain of the precast concrete
junction box industry through mergers and acquisitions by utilizing
the net proceeds from the Listing of the Shares on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 19 July 2017.

The revenue increased from approximately RM33.3 million for the
year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM33.6 million for the
year ended 31 May 2017, representing a growth of approximately
0.9%. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the revenue
generated from the trading of accessories and pipes and provision of
mobile crane rental and ancillary services.
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The Group’s revenue generated from the trading of accessories and
pipes and the provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary services
increased by approximately 19%, from approximately RM4.2 million
for the year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM5.0 million for
the year ended 31 May 2017. The increase was mainly caused by the
increase in sales of scrap metals.

Costs of sales mainly consists of (i) cost of raw materials and trading
products; (i) manufacturing overheads; (iii) direct labour; and (iv)
crane hiring costs. The cost of sales decreased slightly from
approximately RM23.4 million for the year ended 31 May 2016 to
approximately RM23.2 million for the year ended 31 May 2017,
representing a decrease of approximately 0.8%. Such change was
mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in sale of precast concrete
junction boxes for year ended 31 May 2017; and (i) the decrease in
the average unit price of ready-mix concrete by approximately
RM28.2 per m3, or 13.6%, resulting from a relatively lower price of
ready-mix concrete offered by the Group’s suppliers during the year
ended 31 May 2017.

The total cost of sales from the manufacturing and sale of precast
concrete junction boxes decreased from approximately RM19.5
million for the year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM18.3
million for the year ended 31 May 2017.

The Gross Profit increased from approximately RM9.9 million for the
year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM10.4 million for the
year ended 31 May 2017.

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by approximately
RM1.1 million or 50% from approximately RM2.2 million for the year
ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM3.3 million for the year
ended 31 May 2017.

The Group's administrative expenses mainly consisted of salaries,
welfare and other benefits, rent and rates, general office expenses,
depreciation and professional service fees. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in staff costs paid to Directors and staff
due to business expansion and audit fee and other professional
costs in relation to the compliance with the GEM Listing Rules during
the year.
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Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by
approximately RM0.07 million or 5.6% from approximately RM1.26
million for the year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM1.33
million for the year ended 31 May 2017.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses mainly consisted of
salaries, welfare and other benefits for sales and marketing staff and
travelling and entertainment expenses. The slight increase of selling
and distribution expenses was mainly due to the increase in salaries,
welfare and other benefits.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately RM1.1 million for the
year ended 31 May 2017 due to the net effect of (i) a non-recurring
Listing expenses of approximately RMé million for its Listing exercise
during the year ended 31 May 2017, (ii) the increase in the
administrative expenses incurred by the Group for the year ended 31
May 2017; (iii) the slight decrease in the cost of sales of the Group for
the year ended 31 May 2017 and (iv) the slight increase in revenue of
the Group for the year ended 31 May 2017.

The Group's operation is subject to general economic and market
risks which may affect the competition and profitability of
construction projects. The Group's key risk exposures are
summarised as follows:

(@  Fluctuation in the prices of our major raw materials may have
adverse impacts on the Group’s financial results;

(b)  The Group's revenue is mainly derived from the manufacturing
and sale of precast concrete junction boxes to its customers
for infrastructure upgrades and expansion work for
construction projects, which are non-recurrent in nature and
there is no guarantee that the customers will place new
business purchase orders; and

(c) The Group’s cash flow position may deteriorate owing to a
mismatch between the time of receipt of payments from its
customers and payments to its suppliers if the Group is unable
to manage its cash flow mismatch properly.
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For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer to
the section headed "Risks Factors” in the prospectus of the Group
dated 6 July 2017 (the “Prospectus”).

As a manufacturer of precast concrete junction boxes, the Group
has to purchase raw materials from its suppliers from time to time
based on its procurement policy. The Group relies on cash inflow
from its customers to meet its payment obligations to our suppliers.
The Group's cash inflow is dependent on the prompt settlement of
its payments. As at 31 May 2017, the Group recorded trade
receivables amounting to approximately RM13.1 million, the number
of trade receivables turnover days was approximately 143 days
which exceeded the credit period stipulated on the Group’s service
agreements with its customers with average trade payable turnover
days of approximately 79 days. The Group is exposed to credit risk
and liquidity risk. For further details, please refer to note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group's cash and cash equivalents was
approximately RM8.3 million (31 May 2016: approximately RM4.5
million).

As at 31 May 2017, the Group’s total borrowings were approximately
RMO.6 million (31 May 2016: approximately RM0.8 million).

As at 31 May 2017, the Group current ratio was 2.6 (31 May 2016:
2.0), which is calculated based on the total current assets divided by
the total current liabilities. The gearing ratio was approximately 3.2%
as at 31 May 2017 (31 May 2016: 6.7%), which is calculated based on
the total interest-bearing loans divided by the total equity.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group had no bank borrowings (2016:
approximately RM0.6 million). The gearing ratio, calculated based on
the total borrowings divided by total equity at the end of the year
and multiplied by 100%, decreased from approximately 6.7% as at 31
May 2016 to approximately 3.2% as at 31 May 2017 due to
repayment of all bank borrowings in full. The Group's financial
position is sound and strong. With available bank balances and cash
and bank credit facilities, the Group has sufficient liquidity to satisfy
its funding requirements.
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The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange on 19 July 2017. There has been no
change in the capital structure of the Group since then. The share
capital of the Group only comprises of ordinary shares.

As at 31 May 2017, the share capital and equity attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately RM57 and
approximately RM18.5 million respectively (31 May 2016: Nil and
RM11.6 million respectively). Details of the capital risk management
are set out in the note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group had capital commitments in respect of
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment totalling RM117,000
(31 May 2016: Nil).

Since a substantial amount of income and profit of our Group is
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit (“RM"), any fluctuations in the
value of RM may adversely affect the amount of dividends, if any,
payable to the Shares in HK$ to our Shareholders. Furthermore,
fluctuations in the RM’s value against other currencies will create
foreign currency translation gains or losses and may have an adverse
effect on our Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operations. Any imposition, variation or removal of foreign exchange
controls may adversely affect the value, translated or converted into
HKS$, of our Group's net assets, earnings or any declared dividends.
Consequently, this may adversely affect our Group's ability to pay
dividends or satisfy other foreign exchange requirements.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group had bank deposits pledged with banks
totalling approximately RM1.1 million (31 May 2016: approximately
RM1.3 million). These deposits were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN N D

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS, AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save for the reorganisation in relation to the listing of the shares of
the Company, there were no significant investment held, nor other
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the year ended 31 May 2017. There is no future
plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31 May 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 May 2017, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(31 May 2016: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 May 2017, we had 65 employees who are located in
Malaysia and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The
Group generally recruits employees from the open market by placing
recruitment advertisements. The Group entered into individual labour
contracts with each of the employees in accordance with the
applicable labour laws of Malaysia and the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, which cover matters such as wages,
employee benefits and grounds for termination. The remuneration
package that the Group offers to the employees includes salary,
bonuses, allowances and medical benefits. In general, the Group
determines an employee’s salary based on each employee’s
qualifications, experience and capability and the prevailing market
remuneration rate. The Group has designed a review system to
assess the performance of our employees once a year, which forms
the basis of our decisions with respect to salary adjustments,
bonuses and promotions.

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

Given that the Share Offer was completed after 31 May 2017, the
implementation plan as set out in the section headed “Future plans
and use of proceeds” of the Prospectus will commence during the
year ending 31 May 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERWR DT

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER

The shares of the Company were listed on 19 July 2017 on the GEM
by Share Offer. The Offer Price was HK$0.28 per Offer Share. The net
proceeds received by the Company from the Share Offer, after
deducting underwriting fees and other expenses, were
approximately HK$29.6 million.

The net proceeds from the Listing have not been utilised up to the
date of report in accordance with the proposed applications set out
in the section “Net Proceeds from The Share Offer” of the
announcement “Offer Price and Allotment Results”. The table below
lists out the proposed applications of the net proceeds and usuage
up to the date of report.

R BRERESRENAR
RNAREHI2017 57 A 19 HUARMHEEHRE
BIZIR T - HEEARTREERM0.28E T -
RN F B RN B E WELE FTS RIEE R (kR 2
HERARAMRAZR)NR29.6BEBT -

BEEHERY  LWASHRBEFEEARE %
EEREREGER] AT [ROBERSTHA
FE —ERENREREHA - TREJIEE
BEAMASREFENRERELERBR -

Net proceeds Amount Unutilised
from the utilised up to balance up to
share offer 31 May 2017 31 May 2017
RHBE BEE2017 & BEE2017 &
Frf8FRE 5H831H 5H31H
HE CEAELE RE KRR
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
AEET BEET BEET
Expansion of production capacity FEBUATHRIBEAER
through
(i  expanding our Existing Selangor () IEFIEASEHEM
Plant B 7.0 - 7.0
(i)  completing the establishment (i) FERGEIF L KRE
of our New Kulaijaya Plant and HHE & 7.3 = 7.3
(i) recruiting new staff (iiy HEEWEL 2.6 = 2.6
Acquisition of a parcel of land in 1 B 55 2R 75 25 R SR A Hb 3R
Southern Malaysia 8.4 - 8.4
Expansion of our business vertically %@ GBS fE B &8 5 + 3
in the supply chain of the precast BRITENREEEEN
concrete junction box industry R
through mergers and acquisitions 27 - 2.7
Expansion of our sales and marketing 18 A #5 & T 45 6 & B Bx
team 0.8 - 0.8
General working capital —REEES 0.8 - 0.8
Total @t 29.6 - 29.6

The Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’s business
objectives and will change or modify plans against the changing
market conditions to ascertain the business growth of the Group.

EERRETAAEENEBRER  YHERET
B E TR E A BGHE - AR ARE W
EIHIRE
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As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate any
change to the plan as to the use of proceeds.

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31 May
2017:

(@ The Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme on 27 June 2017, summary of terms and conditions of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV “Statutory and General Information” to
the Prospectus. No share option has been granted since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

(b)  On 27 June 2017, the authorized share capital of the Company
was increased to HK$4,399,900 by the creation of an additional
of 439,990,000 issued at a price of HK$0.01 each.

() On 19 July 2017, the Company was successfully listed on the
GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.

(d On 24 February 2017, the Company entered into a legally-
binding collaboration agreement with Buhmi Precast Sdn Bhd
in order to secure punctual supply of ready-mix concrete. Up
to reporting date, no transaction was resulted from the
collaboration agreement yet. Details of the collaboration
agreement are set out in the paragraph headed “Collaboration
with a Ready-mix Concrete Supplier” in the Business section of
the Prospectus.

(e) on 1 August 2017, Telekom signed and returned the Formal
Agreement between the Company'’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
namely Target Precast and Telekom in Respect of the Supply
and Delivery of Concrete Junction Boxes and Junction Box
Cover for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019.
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Mr. Loh Swee Keong, aged 50, is the founder of the group. He was
appointed to the Board on 28 October 2016 and is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is responsible for
the overall business strategy, approving annual budget proposals,
and major business decisions of the group. Mr. Loh has over 20
years of work experience in the precast concrete junction box
industry. Mr. Loh completed his secondary school from five level
education in Tsung Wah National Type Secondary School, Kuala
Kangsar, Perak, Malaysia in November 1985.

Before establishing the group, Mr. Loh established a sole
proprietorship under the name Jackon Trading in 1989, where he
was primarily involved in the supply of ready-mix concrete to
construction companies in Malaysia. In March 1993, Mr. Loh co-
founded Target Precast, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
group which was at that time primarily involved in the supply of
ready-mix concrete to construction companies, negotiating business
with customers and responsible for the daily operations of the group.
In 1995, Mr. Loh, for the first time, manufactured the moulds using
the then existing technology for precast concrete junction boxes and
commenced the production and manufacturing of precast junction
concrete boxes to customers.

Loh Swee Keong %t 4 - 505% @ A% E &) Al
A BR2016F10A28BEZIMAESS -
WARARREZEZEEGEF - HAEBBEBLR
B BEUFEREEZRERAEENEZEKA
o lohERBRRRLEGETERERA
204F TYEACER © Loh e A 1A 1985 4F 11 AR B 2k
25 28 B M T ¥ % &9 Tsung Wah National Type
Secondary School 5Eak 7 £ 58 1 B 7R 78 -

B B SZ 7 55 B A 0 Loh 5 A #1989 4F LA Jackon
Trading &KL —KBELE  ERHREER
RN EE QR HETEHIERL - 199343
A - Loh % 4 H [F &Il 3t Target Precast (4N & & &)
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Mr. Tan Cheng Siong, aged 37, is an Executive Director of the
group. Mr. Tan was appointed to the Board on 9 December 2016 and
is a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is
responsible for reviewing the planning, and management of the
business. He is also involved in the sales and marketing activities
which include negotiating business with customers. Mr. Tan joined
the group as a business development executive in November 2014.
Mr. Tan graduated with a Bachelor ‘s degree of Commerce majoring
in Accounting and Finance from the Curtin University of Technology
in Australia in February 2002.

In May 2002, Mr. Tan worked as an audit assistant with Y C Tan & Co,
a public accounting firm in Singapore. He was later promoted to the
post of senior audit officer in May 2004. Mr. Tan later joined Kuek
Brothers Furniture Sdn. Bhd. in 2005, a manufacturer distributors and
exporters in home furnishing in Malaysia, as a marketing executive
where he was responsible for handling the company’s export
markets. In 2006, Mr. Tan was subsequently promoted as a branch
assistant manager in both the Muar and Kulai branches of Malaysia
where he was responsible for handling the company’s retail
businesses. From September 2007 to February 2008, Mr. Tan worked
as a sales and marketing manager in T & L Office Solution Sdn. Bhd.,
a supplier in all kind of office equipment. In 2008, Mr. Tan set up
Billion Tree Asia, a consulting firm providing financial analytical
coaching services to clients. Mr. Tan had been a director of Billion
Tree Asia from 2008 to 2015. The company became inactive since
2015.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

Tan Cheng Siong st » 375% » AAREBHNHIT
BE - TanER2016F 12 A9 BZEMAE
EE UATHEESKE - HRAEBRNELR
ZIMEIR - RN HEERTIGHEETE - B
BIEEBRPAKRER - Tan £ £ 2014 F 11 A 40
AREBREBERES - Tan £ £ 1020024 2
RERBMNOBIEMBRBEE  EREELE
i - EEGF R -

72002458 » Tan£4RY C Tan & Co(— K%
M AESHMERAT) TIEEBREAE -
H%R2004F5 A A Z S MBT EEABAL -

Tan% 4 H 1% 20054 jHn AKuek Brothers
Furniture Sdn. Bhd. (— X B RA G R AR iER -

SEFELOB)ERMSHEEET aREE
AFHEATIBEER - 20064 » Tane A EEE
A =B RADME GRS RRED DB BIEL
B BEEEARINTERER - N2007F9AE
200842 A » Tan LA T & L Office Solution Sdn.
Bhd. (B BRI AR BRI E ) MR E RS
HEE 4F I - 2008 4 © Tan %t 4 AX 3z Billion Tree
Asia(—RABFIREM B HITIEERBE AR

A A ) e Tan 4 H20084F E 20154 ABillion
Tree ASIAMIEE c X AR E 2015 FREELE -



Mr. Yau Ka Hei (EBX &), aged 33, was appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 27 June 2017
and is a member of the Audit Committee, and Nomination Committee
and chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yau
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since October 2016. He obtained his Bachelor's degree of Business
Administration in Business Economics from the City University of Hong
Kong in November 2007.

In September 2007, Mr. Yau was employed as an associate of the
assurance department of PricewaterhouseCoopers where he was
responsible for evaluating internal control environments and system
processes, and identifying opportunities for improving companies’
internal controls, operation workflows and integrity of financial
records. He then joined the Bank of Communications in August 2010
as an officer of the company’s finance department where he was
responsible for, among others, preparing IFRS financial reports to the
head office in the PRC and external auditors. From February 2011 to
November 2011, he worked as a senior accountant at the assurance
department of Ernst & Young. From June 2012 to August 2016, Mr.
Yau worked as an internal auditor of Kaisun Energy Group Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 8203) a
company engaged in (i) mining and metallurgical machineries
production; (i) provision of supply chain management for mineral
business; (iii) exploitation and production of coal; and (iv) securities
investment where he was responsible for among others, (a)
preparing internal control report of operational and financial
processes and reporting to the audit committee of the company; and
(b) performing due diligence providing advice of the operational and
financial arrangements for merger and acquisition projects.
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From October 2016 to February 2017, Mr. Yau worked in Deckers
Asia Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Deckers Outdoor
Corporation (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange) as
an internal auditor, where he was responsible for validating audit on
operation and finance management. From June 2017 to August 2017,
Mr. Yau worked as an assistant account manager of Magico Group
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of China Properties
Group Limited (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code 1838), a company engaged in property development and
property investment in the PRC, where he is responsible for
overseeing accounting activities of the company. Mr. Yau is currently
finance manager of a private limited company in Hong Kong, which
engaged in energy trading business.

Mr. Chu Kin Ming (&#288), aged 37, was appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director on 27 June 2017 and is a member of Remuneration
Committee and Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Chu obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. Mr. Chu has more than 15
years working experience in the accounting and company secretarial field.

Mr. Chu is currently a financial controller and company secretary of
KEE Holding Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 2011) and Ascent International Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Chanco International Group Limited) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 264), both of
which are subsidiaries of ZhongHong Holdings Limited (a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 979).

Mr. Chu is a member of (i) the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants; (ii) the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; (iii) the Hong Kong Chartered Secretaries; and (iv) the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick (Z=837%), aged 36, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 27 June 2017 and is a
member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Lee obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
and Music from Emory University, United States in December 2007.
Further, he is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors since
July 2017.

From May 2005 to April 2008, Mr. Lee worked in various institutions
whereby he, inter alia, advised on business strategies in relation to
acquisition or investment opportunities. For the period between April
2011 to May 2012, Mr. Lee worked for the group companies of
Morgan Stanley, Hong Kong as an analyst in the international wealth
management division in Hong Kong where he was responsible for
expanding PRC client base. Mr. Lee then worked in the capacity of
vice president of the private banking department for Credit Suisse,
Hong Kong for the period between August 2012 to January 2013.
From February 2014 to June 2015, Mr. Lee worked for BOCI-
Prudential Asset Management Limited as vice president of the
quantitative strategy business unit of the company. He is currently
an investment director of First Impression Limited, a consulting firm,
where he was responsible for, inter alia, advising on investment
structures and implementing investment strategy aimed to enhance
risk management.
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Mr. Phang Xue Zun, aged 32, is the chief project officer of the
group. He is responsible for providing pre-sales support to our
customers and handling technical supporting activities with our sales
and marketing team. Mr. Phang obtained his Diploma in Construction
Management from the Imperia Institute of Technology, Malaysia in
February 2006.

Mr. Phang joined the group in November 2005 as a production
supervisor where he was responsible for handling our production
activities in our production plant. He was subsequently promoted as
the sales engineer in May 2008 where he was primarily responsible
for sales and marketing activities of the group and managing projects
for customers in Klang Valley and the eastern coast of West Malaysia.
Mr. Phang was then promoted as the assistant sales manager in
September 2014 and was further promoted as the chief project
officer in January 2016. In October 2013, Mr. Phang and other
Independent Third Parties established Five Stars Laundry Sdn. Bhd.,
a company engaged in the business of providing laundry, washing,
cleaning and drying services. Mr. Phang is currently a director and
shareholder of the company.

Ms. Chau Wing Kei (E#kH), aged 30, joined the group and was
appointed as the company secretary of the group on 9 December
2016. She graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s degree in Science in November 2008. She has been a
fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since March 2014.

She possesses over six years of experience in aspect of financial
reporting, accounting, compliance, and auditing. From September
2010 to July 2014, Ms. Chau had worked as an auditor in Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu and her work mainly involved audit and assurance
services. In February 2015, Ms. Chau joined Illinois Tool Works Inc.
and her last position was senior internal auditor and she was
responsible for performing financial and operational reviews of the
subsidiaries.
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Mr. Albert Wong Mun Sum, aged 54, is the chief financial officer
of the group. He is responsible for the daily operations and the
financial and accounting activities of the group. Mr. Wong obtained
his Bachelor s degree of commerce from the University of New
South Wales in April 1986 where he further obtained a Master 's
degree of commerce in accounting in April 1988. Mr. Wong has been
a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants since October
1993. He was admitted as a fellow of the Institute of Financial
Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Institute of Public
Accountants in November 2012 in Melbourne, Australia. He is also a
registered GST agent in Malaysia since 2015. Mr. Wong has over 20
years of experience in the banking and accounting field.

Before joining our Group in December 2015, Mr. Wong worked as a
senior manager in the finance and accounts division of S&P Food
Manufacturing (M) Berhad for the period from September 1997 to
November 1999. In April 2000, Mr. Wong joined the Econstates
Berhad as its senior manager and then promoted as the general
manager of the finance department of the company. In July 2004, Mr.
Wong worked as the finance controller of the finance department of
Haisan Resources Berhad. He then joined the Ireka Development
Management Sdn. Bhd. in April 2008 and worked as a senior vice
president of the corporate finance department. In December 2009,
Mr. Wong joined the Quill Construction Sdn. Bhd. as the Chief
Accountant. In July 2010, he was transferred to Quill Automobiles (M)
Sdn. Bhd. as the finance director of the finance department of the
company. In October 2011, Mr. Wong joined the Montprimo Sdn.
Bhd. (formerly known as Macrodon Sdn. Bhd.) as the general
manager of the finance department and was transferred to Fivestar
Development (Puchong) Sdn. Bhd. where all the terms and conditions
of his employment remain unchanged. He subsequently joined the
Hatten Asset Management Sdn. Bhd. as the financial controller in
December 2013.
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Mr. Ma Hong Chee, aged 49 is the operations manager of the
group. He is responsible for overseeing the production activities of
our production plant. Mr. Ma completed SRP, Malaysia Sekolah
Menengah Tanah Putih, Kuantan, Pahang.

From October 1996 to April 2010, Mr. Ma joined Grobest Frozen (M)
Sdn., Bhd. where he was responsible for (i) setting up the processing
plant operation system; (i) in production planning and operation; (iii)
monitoring purchasing flow and supplier management flow; and (iv)
implementing and managing marketing programmes. His last
position with the company was manager.

Ms. Siew Poi Voon, aged 39 is the factory manager. She is
responsible for overseeing the manufacturing and operations of the
production activities of the group. Ms. Siew joined the group as a
human resource and administration executive in March 2013 and
was promoted as our assistant factory manager in April 2015. Ms.
Siew was subsequently appointed as our factory manager in August
2016. Ms. Siew obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Human Development
from the University Putra Malaysia in July 2001.

From August 2001 to March 2003, Ms. Siew worked as the human
resource officer of YP Precision (M) Sdn. Bhd. where she was
responsible for general human resource functions which include
payroll, training and development, recruitment as well as matters
pertaining to foreign workers in the company. She subsequently
joined the Delcol Water Solution Sdn. Bhd. in April 2003 as a human
resource executive. In December 2007, Ms. Siew joined Jordone
Corporation Sdn. Bhd. as a human resource and administration
executive. She was subsequently promoted to the post of assistant
administrative manager in August 2009 where she was responsible
for the company’s purchasing, advertising and branding (including
media and branding) as well as general administration duties.
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The Board is pleased to present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2017.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company's subsidiary
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group is principally engaged in (i) manufacturing and trading of
precast junction boxes, (i) trading of accessories and pipes and (iii)
provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary services in Malaysia.

During the Year, the Group has compiled with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Group.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 38 to 53 of this annual report.

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution by principal
business segments during the Year are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of business review of the Group for the year ended 31 May
2017 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 5 to 7 and the business review and outlook of the Group is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 16 of this annual report. The discussion and analysis of
the Group's performance during the Year and the material factor
underlying its financial performance and financial position are set out
in the “Three Years Financial summary” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on page 128 and pages 8 to 16
respectively.
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The result of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2017 and the state
of the affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on page 61.

During the Year, no interim dividend (2016: RM2 million) was
declared and paid.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 May 2017 (2016: Nil).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

A summary of published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last three financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statement and the Prospectus, is set out on page 128 on
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the Company’s share capital and movements of during the
Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity set out on pages 62 to 64 respectively.
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DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

As at 31 May 2017, the Company’s reserve available for distribution
which consists of share premium, retained profit and the aggregate
amount of reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company amounted to approximately RM9.9 million (2016:
RM11.0 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the law of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year ended
31 May 2017.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that our employees, customers and suppliers
are key stakeholders to the Group’s success. The Group strive to
achieve corporate sustainability through engaging employees,
providing quality products and services to our customers,
collaborating with suppliers to deliver quality sustainable products
and services and supporting our community.
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During the Year, the top five customers together accounted for
approximately 19.8% of the Group’s revenue and the Group's largest
customer accounted for approximately 3.9% of the Group'’s revenue.

During the Year, the top five suppliers together accounted for
approximately 39.6% of the Group's purchases and the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 9.4% of the Group's
purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in these major customers and suppliers.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Directors were:

Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong

Mr. Yau Ka Hei
Mr. Chu Kin Ming
Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick

(appointed on 27 June 2017)
(appointed on 27 June 2017)
(appointed on 27 June 2017)

By virtue of Articles 108 and 112 of the articles of association of the
Company, all the Directors shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election at the said
meeting.

Each of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and Mr.
Tan Cheng Siong, has entered into a service or an appointment letter
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice served by
either party on the other, and is subject to termination provisions
therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set
out in Articles.
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a
service or an appointment letter with the Company for a fixed term
of three years, which may be terminated by not less than one
months’ written notice served by either party on the other, and is
subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in Articles.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract or an
appointment letter which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographies details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 17 to 24.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS' REMUNERATION
Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individual's remuneration are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year and at any time during the Year.

INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN
CONTRACTS

No contract of significance has been entered during the Year
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders or any its subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into.
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No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Year.

The controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and the
company through which he holds equity interests in the Company,
namely Merchant World Investments Limited, have entered into a
Deed of Non-Competition with the Company on 27 June 2017. The
details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been disclosed in the
Prospectus.

The controlling shareholders have confirmed with the Company that
they had complied with the non-competition undertakings during the
year ended 31 May 2017. The Directors (including the Independent
Non-executive Directors) have reviewed and confirmed the
compliance with the non-competition undertaking by the controlling
shareholders.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float or not less than 25% of the
Shares are in the hands of the public as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

As at 31 May 2017, none of the Directors, nor the substantial
shareholders of the Company and any their respective close
associates has any interest in a business which competes or likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

As notified by RHB Capital Hong Kong Limited (“RHB Capital”),
compliance adviser of the Company, except for (i) RHB Capital’s
participation as the sole sponsor in relation to the Listing; and (i) the
compliance adviser agreement entered into between the Company
and RHB Capital dated 27 June 2017, neither RHB Capital nor any of
its close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and none of
the directors or employees of RHB Capital had any interest in the
share capital of our Company or any member of our Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if any) which is
required to be notified to our Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the
GEM Listing Rules as of 31 May 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 May 2017, the interests and short position of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO (i) as required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or/or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQ),
or (i) as required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Sections 352 of the SFO, or (iii) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

ordinary Shares of the Company

Capacity/
Nature of Interest

51 REtE

Interest in controlled
corporation
S EE R

Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Note 2)

Loh Swee Keong 4 4 (Kt 2)
Notes:
(1) The letter (L) denotes the person’s long interest in the Shares.
(2)  Merchant World Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the
BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Loh Swee Keong. Mr. Loh Swee Keong

is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Merchant World
Investments Limited for the purpose of the SFO.
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Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2017, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO (i) as required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and/or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO), or (i) as
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 May 2017, the following persons (other than a Directors or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 and SFO were as
follows:
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Merchant World Investments Limited
Merchant World Investments Limited

Ms. Woon Sow Sum (Note 2)
Woon Sow Sum Z =+ (ft:#2)

Greater Elite Holdings Limited
Greater Elite Holdings Limited B

Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul (Note 3)

Beneficial owner
BEmlEa A

Interest of spouse
[T e ey

Beneficial owner
sHEA A

Interest in controlled
corporation

BRRSH (HaE3) R EE R
Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina (Note 4) Interest of spouse

Cheng Lai Wah Christina zZ + (#f7% 4)

Notes:

M

@

Aot an

The letter (L) denotes the person'’s long interest in the Shares.

Ms. Woon Sow Sum is the spouse of Mr. Loh Swee Keong and is
deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which Mr. Loh Swee
Keong has interest under the SFO.

Greater Elite Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI and
is wholly-owned by Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul. Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Greater Elite
Holdings Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina is the spouse of Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul
and is deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which Mr. Law
Fung Yuen Paul has interest under the SFO.

Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2017, the Company has not

been

notified by any person (other than the Directors or the chief

executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or as required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full time and part time), or any member of the Group,
including any Executive, Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, advisors, consultants of the Group.

The Company conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on 27
June 2017 whereby the Board is authorised, at its absolute discretion
and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant
options to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for the shares of the
Company. The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a
period of ten years from the date of the grant of option.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue upon the date of the shares of the
Company listed on the GEM, being 62,000,000 shares (or such
numbers of shares as shall result from a subdivision or a
consolidation of such 62,000,000 from time to time) (the “Scheme
Limit"). Subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting, the
Board may (i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of the approval by the shareholders in general
meeting; and/or (i) grant options beyond the Scheme Limit to Eligible
Participants specifically identified by the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme an any other share option scheme of the Company
at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. No options shall be granted under any schemes of the
Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to each Participants in any twelve months
period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant
of options is subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
with such Eligible Participants and his associates abstaining from
voting.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant to
the provisions of early termination thereof.

An offer for the grant must be accepted within seven days inclusive
of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable by
the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an options is HK$1.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on exercise of an option at
the price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at least
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the share.

Save for disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company, its or any of its holding companies or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and
the Chief Executives (including their spouses and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares, or
underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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During the Year, there were no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the significant
related party transactions undertaken in the usual course of business
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitute a disclosable
connected transaction as defined under the GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the retirement benefits plan of the Group as at 31 May
2017 are set out in the note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association (“Articles
of Association”) of the Company, the applicable laws and
regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in
their offices. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Group.

Save for the Share Option Scheme are set out above, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked arrangement during the Year.

The Company recognized its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Company is committed
to the sustainable development of the environment and our society.
The Group has endeavoured to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopted effective
environmental practices to ensure our business meet the required
standards and ethics in respect of environmental protection.

During the Year, the Group had made charitable and other donation
for approximately RM31,417 (2016. RM19,656).
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The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors were independent during the Year.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2017 have been
audited by Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-LCA) who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-LCA) as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

SK Target Group Limited
Loh Swee Keong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 August 2017
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Since the Listing, the Board has recognised that transparency and
accountability is important to a listed company. Therefore, the Board
and the senior management of the Group is committed to achieve a
high standard of corporate governance, to formulate good corporate
governance practices for improving the accountability and
transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal control
and risk management systems from time to time so as to protect the
rights of the shareholders and enhance shareholder value. The
Directors consider that good corporate governance provides a
framework that is crucial for effective management, successful
business growth and a healthy corporate culture which in return
benefits the Group’s stakeholders as a whole.

As the Shares of the Company were only listed on the Stock
Exchange on 19 July 2017, the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG
Code") was not applicable to the Company during the financial year
ended 31 May 2017. The Directors will continue to review and
monitor its corporate governance practices in order to enhance its
corporate governance standard, to comply with the increasingly
tightened regulatory requirements from time to time, and to meet
the rising expectation of shareholders and other stakeholders of the
Group.

under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established.

Mr. Loh is the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer
of the Company. In view of Mr. Loh has been operating and
managing the operating subsidiaries of the Group since 1993, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Loh taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation
from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such
circumstance.

Save as disclosed above, since the Listing Date and up to the date of

this report, in the opinion of the Directors, the Group has complied
with the code provision of the CG Code.
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As the Shares of the Company were only listed on the Stock
Exchange on 19 July 2017, the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director was not applicable to the Company during
the financial ended 31 May 2017.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific enquiry of all the
Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards of dealings regarding securities transactions
by the Directors since the Listing Date (19 July 2017) to the date of
this report.

The Board currently comprises five Directors, including two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and Mr. Tan Cheng Siong,
and three Independent Non-executive Directors are Mr. Yau Ka Hei,
Mr. Chu Kin Ming and Mr. Lee, Alexander Partick.

Mr. Loh Swee Keong is the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the Board.

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board is accountable to the
Shareholders and in discharging its corporate accountability. The
Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and the Shareholders and fulfill his
fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills, care and
diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory
requirements. The Board has the full support from the Executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company to discharge
its responsibilities.

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior
management are set out in the section headed with “Directors and
Senior Management Profiles” of this report.
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The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s policies and
business plans, and monitoring internal controls and performances.
The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board which assumes the responsibility for promoting the success of
the Company by supervising its affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group's overall strategies, approving the annual
development plan and budget; monitoring financial and operating
performance; reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control
system and supervising the management’s performance. Regarding
the Group’s corporate governance, the Board is responsible for
performing following duties:

(@ determined and reviewed the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

(b)y reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management; and

(c)  reviewed and monitored the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Group has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors (the “Model Code") on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings concerning securities
transactions by the Directors as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Directors are reminded of their obligations under
the Model Code on a regular basis. Following specific enquiries by
the Group, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code from the Listing
Date and up to 31 March 2017.

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Loh is the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company. In view of Mr.
Loh has been operating and managing the operating subsidiaries of
the Group since 1993, the Board believes that it is in the best interest
of the Group to have Mr. Loh taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the deviation from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is
appropriate in such circumstance.
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The Board meets regularly and, in addition to regular meetings, it
meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances. The
Company was listed on 19 July 2017. One board meeting has been
held from the date of the Listing to the date of this annual report.

The Group has not established a corporate governance committee
and thus the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in CG Code D.3.1 such as reviewing and
determining the policies and practices on corporate governance of
the Group, developing the Group’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. To
enable all the Directors to participate in the meetings, the Company
ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the
Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner. Notice of regular Board meetings is
given to all Directors and they can include matters for discussion in
the agenda as they think fit. Draft minutes of Board meeting shall be
circulated to all Directors for comments prior to confirmation of the
minutes. The signed minutes are kept by the Company Secretary.
Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
They are also entitled to have full access to Board documents and
related materials so that they are able to make an informed decision.
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Directors shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of members after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting; and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. Tan Cheng Siong and three Independent Non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Chu Kin Ming and Mr. Lee,
Alexander Patrick shall retire at the AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of above mentioned Directors proposed to
be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”
on pages 17 to 24 of this annual report.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles. Each Independent Non-executive Directors is
required to inform the Group as soon as practicable if there is any
change that may affect his/her independence. The Company has
received from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independency pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers these Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant, the Directors are encouraged to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company. Prior to the Listing, all
Directors had attended an in-housing training course provided by the
Hong Kong Legal Advisor of the Company in relation to the directors’
obligations and responsibilities, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the GEM Listing Rules. The relevant training material has been
distributed to all the Directors. The training covered topics including
the Code, listed company regulations and disclosure obligations in
Hong Kong, disclosable transactions and connected transactions etc.

The Board has established three board committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “"Nomination Committee”). The terms of reference of the
Board's committee are posted on the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange and are available to shareholders
upon request.

The Group established the Audit Committee on 27 June 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of
the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three members namely,
Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Chu Kin Ming and Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chu Kin Ming.
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The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the followings:

@)

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relations with the external auditor, and be primarily
responsible for making recommendations to the board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

to review with the Group’s management, external auditors and
internal auditor, where an internal audit function exists in the
Company, the adequacy of the Group's policies and system
regarding internal controls (including financial, operational and
compliance controls), risk management system and any
statement by the directors of the Company to be included in
the annual accounts prior to endorsement by the Board;

to review and monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and the annual, quarterly and interim financial
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them prior to approval by the Board,
with particular focus on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustment resulting from the audit/review;

(iv) the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with the accounting and auditing standards,
and

(viy compliance with the listing requirements on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;
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(d

Oversee the issuer’s financial reporting system, the risk
management and the internal control systems;

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee,
or by the board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

to review arrangements employees of the Group can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-
up action;,

to review the draft representation letter prior to approval
by the Board;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the issuer’s accounting and financial
reporting function; and

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report, one
meeting has been being held for the Audit Committee. The audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 27 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34
to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph B.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
currently consists of three members, namely Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Tan
Cheng Siong and Mr. Chu Kin Ming. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Yau Ka Hei.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for the
followings:

(@)

to consult the chairman of the Board and/or the chief executive
of the Company (where applicable) about their remuneration
proposals for other Executive Directors. The Committee should
have access to independent professional advice if necessary;

review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

either (i) determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company; or (ii) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management of
the Company. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries; and

review and approve compensation payable to the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive.
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During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report, one
meeting has been held for the Remuneration Committee.

The emolument payable to Directors depends on their respective
contractual terms under the service contracts and the appointment
letters, and as recommended by the Remuneration Committee.
Details of the Directors’ emolument are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees required to be disclosed under Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules have been set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our Company established the Nomination Committee on 27 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee currently consists of three members, namely
Mr. Loh Swee Keong, Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick.
The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Loh Swee Keong.

The main roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include
the followings:

(@  review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals hominated for directorships;

(c) assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

(d)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors of the Company and succession
planning for directors of the Company, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company; and
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(e) have a policy concerning diversity of Board members, review
the policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy and should disclose the policy or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report
annually.

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of measurable aspects including but not
limited to educational background, professional qualifications, age,
ethnicity, knowledge and length of services. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regards for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. No restrictions, like age, gender, and ethnic
origin, will be set for the selection of Board members. The Company
will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the business of
the Group. The Nomination Committee will ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the needs of the business of the Group.

The Company was listed on 19 July 2017. During the period from the

Listing Date to the date of this report, one meeting has been held for
the Nomination Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBME

From the Listing Date to the date of this report, the attendance
record of each Director is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors

BEMAMEEARARE B  SEFENHFEL

BER TR

Number of attendance/number of meetings from the

Listing Date to the date of this report

Esps

HEmEHEZE
Audit
Committee
meeting
EREEEER

Board
meeting
=gl

Executive Directors

WIES
Mr. Loh Swee Keong 11 N/A
Loh Swee Keong 4 TiEA
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong 1/1 N/A
Tan Cheng Siong £ & NiEA
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Yau Ka Hei 11 11
BRERE
Mr. Chu Kin Ming 171 171
REREE
Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick 11 1/1
FHERE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the Group's state of affairs, results and cash
flows and in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and
principles and the disclosure requirements under applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong.

The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial
statements prepared by the Board and to report their opinion to the
shareholders of the Company. The statements by external auditor,
Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-LCA), about their reporting responsibility
on the financial statements of the Group are set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 54 to 60 of this annual report.

RREBHLMERERE ERRE
Remuneration  Nomination
Committee =~ Committee
meeting meeting
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General
meeting
BRAE

N/A 7 N/A

TiEA TiEA

17 N/A N/A

i i

7 il N/A
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7 N/A N/A

TiEA TiEA

N/A 17 N/A
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The Board is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
and risk management systems and for monitoring their effectiveness
to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the assets of the Group.
The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate efficient
operation which in turn reduces the risks to which the Group is
exposed. The internal control and risk management systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Group recognises that effective risk management is essential for
the long-term development on the Group’s business. The
management is responsible for establishing, implementing and
reviewing the sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework. The Audit Committee
will periodically review the Group’s compliance status with the Hong
Kong laws and will perform its functions by (i) reviewing the internal
control and legal compliance; (ii) discussing the internal control
systems with the management of the Group to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system and (iii) considering the major investigation findings
on internal control matters as delegated by the Board or its own
initiative and the management’s response to these findings. While
taking into full account of the new requirements effective from the
Listing Date under the GEM Listing Rules brought by Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited relating to risk management and
internal control, the management has formulated the risk
management and control framework. All employees are committed
to implement the risk management framework into the daily
operation.

In relation to the Listing, to assess and identify weakness in the
Group'’s internal procedures, systems and controls, the Group has
engaged an independent internal control consultant (“Internal
Control Consultant”) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the internal control procedures, systems and controls. Based upon
the recommendations from the Internal Control Consultant, the
Group has taken remedial actions. Further, in order to continuously
improve the Group's corporate governance in the future the Group
will adopt the measures recommended by the Internal Control
Consultant.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

Based on the result of the reviews as mentioned above, it is
considered that proper internal control and risk management
systems are in place and implemented effectively.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 May 2017, the remuneration paid or payable
to Deliotte PLT in respect of the statutory audit services and non-
audit services for the Group are as follows:

Nature of Services

R HE

EZIRT
FFEZRES

Audit services
Non-audit services

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chau Wing Kei was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 9 December 2016. All Directors have access to the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Ms. Chau taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 May 2017. The biographical details of Ms. Chau are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” on pages 17 to 24 of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interest and
rights, separate resolutions can be proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by
poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting results will
be posted on the website of The Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.
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The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The following procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles (as
amended from time to time), and the applicable legislation and
regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules (as amended from time
to time):

(@ EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition
(the "Requisition”), not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings (the “Eligible Shareholders”). Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two Months after the deposit of such requisition;

(b)y  The Eligible Shareholders must deposit the Requisition to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
“Units 2201-3, Tai Tung Building, 8 Fleming Road, Wanchai” or
to Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited, Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Board and/or the Company Secretary;

(c) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquiries.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

RAAMEE - EREARBBEINRIRE EBE
AR EEHAEEEBRELREN THRMNE
ERER - UTARREBAKREFIAGHNRE
Fr ThRZ AR (BAEHERT) JA RSE AR B AR B
(BRI AIZER LR R (ETRHERT)) FRARIR

BREHAGAE - BREBBRRNFR
(TFERDBH  ZERRRELFERER
ARBARAFRBRATIR+ D — B
BERRRG LRENENTEERR
KD - BBEFRANEEEAMEEFS Y
WERH BEUEREZG)REAHE
SKETHE R 2 R EH M A R RS AR -
BERERAERRZAELERMEARNSET

BERBRRBEBEEBEREZANRARER
T ELEM I (it A FIEMBRE 8K
R AE201-3%) KA R RN EERGD B
PR RBERLFESDARAT (A
BERERRERISHFEAPL21E) - I
HARRMARERE R/ HREWE

WEFSERMEARAHRET21IBEARE
ETLHBRBEEER  AFERA(ESE
BRAN)ARBERSTABITARES A%
KANREEERALRBHEEMELR
EREERARARAEN -

EREBBRERIRE - NEBRZFUEAT
BARRDMOER  MBERREMEN - Ik
REREEAREIAEHAREALAERTER
REIMEBEELEME -



There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Shareholders may raise guestions, request for publicly available
information and provide comments and suggestions to the Directors
and management of the Company. Such questions, requests,
comments and suggestions can be addressed to the Company by
post to Units 2201-3 Tai Tung Building, 8 Fleming Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong or via telephone at (852) 2861 1999.

Should there are any enquiries and concerns from shareholders,
they may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investors Limited, by post to Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong or via telephone at (852) 2980 1333.
Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from the
Company if it deems appropriate.

The Company has established a shareholders communication policy
between itself and its shareholders, and investors which aims to set
out the principles of the Company in relation to the shareholders’
communications, with the objective of ensuring timely, transparent
and accurate communications between the shareholders of the
Company and the Company. These include answering questions
through the annual general meeting, the publication of annual,
interim and quarterly reports, notices, announcements and circulars,
the Company’s website at www.targetprecast.com and meetings
with investors and shareholders. News update of the Group’s
business development and operation are also available on the
Company's website.

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association of the Company (the "Constitutional
Documents”) on 27 June 2017 and effective upon the Listing. A
copy of the Company’s updated Constitutional Documents is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SK
TARGET GROUP LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiary
companies (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 May 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 May
2017, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information as set out on pages 68 to 127.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position as at
31 May 2017, and of their financial performance and their cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Deloitte PLT (LLP0O010145-LCA)
Chartered Accountants (AF0O080)
Level 16, Menara LGB

1 Jalan Wan Kadir

Taman Tun Dr. Ismail

60000 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Tel: +60 3 7610 8888
Fax: +60 3 7726 8986
myaaa@deloitte.com
www.deloitte.com/my
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With effect from 3 January 2017, Deloitte, a conventional partnership firm with the Registration No. AF0080, was converted to Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-LCA) (AFO080).

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL"), its network of member firms, and their related entities. DTTL and each of its member firms are
legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) does not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/my/about to learn more about our global network of member

firms
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We are independent of the Group in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on the matter.
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We identified the impairment of trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to the use of judgement and
estimates by the management on the evaluation of the
recoverability of trade receivables.

AR ERENTHE S EKGRIER A B ERED
FIET R A ET - B E SREBGIRRE#RN AERE
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Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of trade
receivables included:
BMBEBEEZEWIENRKEENEF ST

o Verified the balances of trade receivables by
requesting and receiving confirmations on a sample
basis,

J FERMEEDNREEERE  ZEBEZRIKERERN
EER

o Tested aging of trade receivable balances at year end
on a sample basis;
e HWEAFEEFEREZEWFIBHIRE

. Obtained a list of long outstanding receivables and
identified any debtors with financial difficulty through
discussion with management;

. FREETEEN R DERAREERKFKIENS
B UREBREAETBRERSENESA
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To determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the counterparty and default or significant
delay in payments. The management also considers
the creditworthiness, the past collection history of
each customer, ageing analysis and subsequent
settlement of individual balances.
RETEAFERENEESE E5EEZREZIE
HZE - fIEF A ERENEERERMBRE K
R ARIEEN R - BERENTEERE A
EAMRR  BREPBAEMUBGREE: - Rk 5T R (E
RAE SRR HAR A B o

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the
amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated
based on historical l0ss experience for assets with
similar credit risk characteristics.

MBERENETEIEE KRB RNSE LR TR
BERHEUGEERBEHNEENBTEELR T AN
i

As set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
RM13.1 million (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
RMO.2 million) as at 31 May 2017.
WAERE M IE R T 18 FTEL - B 5 EUGKIER 2017
FLA3TAMEREEBEA13I1EESE (MR RIEREE0.2
BELT) e

. Assessed the recoverability of these outstanding
receivables through our discussion with management
and with reference to credit profile of the customers;

and
s FRHEEBENHISZLEZFNEAMR  FHZ
EREEBRIGENA EHBEE &

. Assessed the recoverability of the balances by
comparing the outstanding amounts as at year end
against subsequent settlements.

e FHRUBRFARERESBERAREMNER  FTHZ
LA EIIEE -

Based on the audit procedures performed, we found that
the Group’s judgement and assumptions used in the
impairment assessment are supported by the available
evidence.

BEETRNEZET KMRAE BEBLRET-HF
T I R (R B RIS B R  FF o
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The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements of the Group
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements of the Group that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The Directors of the Company are also
responsible for such internal control as the Directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group, the
Directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

BERRERRHEMERAERE -HBEHNE
RERAENER - ETERE ERENGEAM
AR R R APIF L 3 AR B R

BMYE EXRESAVBRRERNBELLRE
BEMEFR - MEMTTIEZEEMENERE
AT Iz 7E A o

mESZ BERENGAMBREAME - RAIWE
TRBEBEMER KMEBREMENES
B ERENGFAMBERRARMERZBES
EENBERBFEERANS  JUFEFEERHER
Bt -

HERMERE TR TIERAEMEMNHRE
RERBRA - RAOBAREZEFE - B E - &
MY EERREMNER

ERRESHAAEREBERMBRELERNER
ARFEPNBEERERUEEMT BN BEXE
FAMBHRK - BERRERTAEHERAH
BRESVBRROBR I FERRRFFHER
M 2 B A #5 SRR A AT 4 75 1O B R BB )

[=]

ERE EXENGEMBHRRE X BEQRE
ZRBENE BEEERELENESD  UWE
BFELEAMNER(IER) - FRIF BERF
EXHAER BEKERERAFLZE Kz
SN EEMBERAITHINE  BRIZRARAN

FECE RERH L
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements of the Group as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors of the Company.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
of the Group represents the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors of the Company regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors of the Company with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

=

2ERE  URBESEDRNEZERE &
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From the matters communicated with the Directors of the Company,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

DELOITTE PLT (LLP0O010145-LCA)
Chartered Accountants (AFO080)

KHONG SIEW CHIN

Partner — 03049/03/2019 J
Chartered Accountant
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEaRkEtAEEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2017
BE2017F5A31 BIEFE

2017
2017 &

RM'000

A%
<A

Revenue A 6 33,595
Cost of sales SHEK A (23,172)
Gross profit EF 10,423
Other income HA A 948
Administrative expenses 1TERF X (3,342)
Selling and distribution expenses HEN DAY (1,331)
Listing expenses LWRHX (6,048)
Finance costs BE KA 9 (57)
Fair value change of financial assets at 2 A F{ET ABRH SR

fair value through profit or loss BENNFEED 13
Profit before taxation BR B A A 10
Taxation TIA 11

(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive R (E5318), B H R 2HE
(loss)/income for the year (F518) Wzkess

(Loss)/Earnings per share — Basic T (E8),/BF —EX
(RM cents) == 12

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated — BEFT P sERERL It 4R & MBI — 5 ©
Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R

AT 31 MAY 2017
R2017%5831H

Note
Ha

Non-Current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R&E 14
Investment property BEYE 15
Total Non-Current Assets FRBEEHAE
Ccurrent Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 16
Financial assets at fair value through R A TES ABZN SR

profit or loss BE 17
Receivables, deposits and prepayment  FEUERIE - 124 RIBR 3 18
Amount owing from a Director R E E5RIE 19
Amount owing from ultimate holding ~ FEUSARIEAR A B FIE

company 19
Amount owing from a shareholder PR 3R kI 19
Tax recoverable AT EIFRIE
Short-term bank deposits pledged R T IRITHORHRITER

with banks 20
Cash on hand and at bank FHERRTHRS
Total Current Assets REBEELE
Current Liabilities REBEE
Payables and accrued charges ENFRIERETER 21
Amount owing to a Director FEREERIE 19
Finance leases BEHEE 22
Bank borrowings RITIER 23
Tax payable FERRLTE
Dividend payable FERTAR B
Net Current Assets FRBEE

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

2017 2016
2017 & 2016
RM'000 RM'000

P = A=
<A ~< B

2,261
411

2,672

1,049
835

11,599
177

1,349
3,181

18,190

6,110
93
599

286
2,000

9,088

9,102



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR &

AT 31 MAY 2017
R2017%5831H

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities A& ERABAE

2017
2017 &
RM’000

A%
<A

19,041

Non-Current Liabilities kRBEaE

Finance leases REMRE 22

Bank borrowings IRITREK 23

Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBAERE 24

Net Assets BEE

Capital and Reserves MR R

Share capital &N 26 -
Reserves s 18,483

18,483

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 67 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
August 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Loh Swee Keong

Director
E2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

HREBONEEMGREMERRAESTSRN
2017 F8 A28 HiBBIWHL ATIZE - WU TES
RERE

Tan Cheng Siong

Director
E2

BEPHBT E BRI F4R B B SRR — &b -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEREBR

Share Other Accumulated

capital reserve

profits

V&N Hitv k& RKETEF

RM'000 RM'000

A A=+
~< = ~< B

(Note 26) (Note 25)
(Hfaz26) (HtaE25)

RM'000

A
< B

Total
st
RM'000

A=
<X B

At 31 May 2015 MA2015F5H31H = 570 8,118 8,688
Profit and total FRENR

comprehensive income FHEW =B

for the year - - 4,895 4,895
Dividend declared (Note 13)  BEE IR E (A7 13) = = (2,000) (2,000)
At 31 May 2016 R2016F5831H - 570 11,013 11,583
Loss and total comprehensive 4 &8 &

loss for the year T HEIBERE = = (1,109) (1,109)
Acquisition of the equity PN/NETE o el B2 NS

interest in subsidiary RIEE BB B

companies by NE R

an intermediate holding

company of the Company

pursuant to the

reorganisation - (570) - (570)
Capital injection and issuance S¥& & 31TAX (D

of shares = 8,579 = 8,579
At 31 May 2017 M2017%5H31H S 8,579 9,904 18,483

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated — BEM M @RIt 424
Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n _\éiﬁl$ﬁ§%

2017
2017 &

RM'000

A=
<A

OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Profit before taxation R A5 A
Adjustments for: BUTSIBELAE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERBEITE
equipment
Depreciation of investment property BEMERE
Finance costs BhE AL A
Allowance for doubtful debts RIREE
Bad debts written off/(recovered) B, (M=) 28R
Fair value change of financial assets at fair R AFEFABRZNERHEEN
value through profit or loss N EES
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE MEEN KR
equipment
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange R N U 2
Interest income FLEWA

Operating Cash Flows Before Movements In &8 & & B ERTHNELIRNERE

Working Capital

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERD,(Em)

Increase in receivables, deposits and JEWGRTE « e RIBFIE M
prepayment

Increase in payables and accrued charges FETERIB R FEET B BN

Net Cash (Used In)/Generated From LB (), P3R4 55
Operations
Income tax paid =ANIZESE

Net Cash (Used In)/From Operating Activities #4558 (FT),FTSIR & 558

HHREBAERADT / 2017F 3K



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

2017
2017 &
RM’000

A=
<A

INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE

Interest received ERFE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEEME - BE REE

Proceed from disposal of financial assets at HERAFEFABFHESREE
fair value through profit or loss FriSskIE

Proceed from disposal of property, plantand H &% - HE & REH TS RIE
equipment

Proceed from disposal of available-for-sale & f#HEREN TS RIE
investment

Repayment from a Director EREX

Advance to a shareholder RETRREOBR
Advance to ultimate holding company R T REIER DT RRK
Advance to a Director REHETEENER

Decrease in amounts owing from related & UL BB HS: 75 SRR
parties

Net Cash From/(Used In) Investing Activities & EZEIFE(FifH) IR & F5E

FINANCING ACTIVITIES REER

Dividend paid ERRE

Finance costs paid BB E A

Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER

New bank borrowings raised HERITIE K

Repayment of finance leases EBEREHE

Decrease/(Increase) in short term bank ARG ERITEROR LD, (18 )
deposits pledged

Investment from pre-IPO investor BAARBEEIREENIRE

Net Cash From/(Used In) Financing Activities R & EBIFE (PR ) IR & F5E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

2017
2017 &

RM’'000

A=
<A

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HeRBLESEYIENTFE
EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FAREREBELEEY

BEGINNING OF YEAR
Effects of exchange rate changes on the FE RSB EEINEIR S BRI E
balance of cash held in foreign currency

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND F£XREERESZEY -
OF YEAR REPRESENTED BY
Cash on hand and at bank EFBERIRTRS

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated — BEMtHMI SR ZE S M BHRERN—ZH
Financial Statements.
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The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 19 July 2017. The Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as a private limited liability
company on 28 October 2016. The addresses of the Company's
registered office and principal place of business are P.O. Box
1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and 18, Jalan LP 2A/2, Taman Lestari Perdana,
43300 Seri Kembangan, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia,
respectively.

Merchant World Investments Limited (“Merchant World”), a
limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"), is the immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company. Mr. Loh Swee Keong, is the ultimate controlling
party of the Company who wholly owned Merchant World.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and trading
of precast concrete junction boxes, trading of accessories and
pipes and provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary
services in Malaysia. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiary companies are set out in Note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to nearest thousands
(RM’000), unless otherwise stated.
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In preparation for the proposed initial listing of the shares of
the Company on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group underwent a reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) as described below.

The Reorganisation involved the setting up of the Company,
Gallant Empire Ltd (“Gallant Empire”), SK Target Holdings Sdn
Bhd (“SK Target Holdings") and Loyal Earn Ltd (“Loyal
Earn”), and interspersing the Company, Gallant Empire, SK
Target Holdings and Loyal Earn between Target Precast
Industries Sdn Bhd (“Target Precast”), Target Sales &
Marketing Sdn Bhd (“Target S&M"), and Target Crane &
Logistic Sdn Bhd (“Target C&L") and Mr. Loh Swee Keong, the
director and sole beneficial owner of these group of entities.
The Company, Gallant Empire, SK Target Holdings, Loyal Earn,
Target Precast, Target S&M, and Target C&L were under
common control by Mr. Loh Swee Keong throughout the year
ended 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 or since their respective
dates of incorporation, where there is a shorter period. The
Company is the holding company after the Reorganisation and
forming part of the Group. The Group comprising the Company
and its subsidiary companies resulted from the Reorganisation
is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared using
the principles of merger accounting. The consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements
of cash flows of the Group have been prepared as if the group
structure upon completion of the Reorganisation had been in
existence throughout the year or since their date of
incorporation, where there is a shorter period. The
consolidated statements of financial position of the Group as at
31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 have been prepared to present
the assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising the
Group as if the group structure upon completion of the
Reorganisation had been in existence at those dates taking into
account the respective date of incorporation, where applicable.

REBRRARBRONEBBARZMER
AERIERETERER LT AEEE
TTER(EMAD  FlaT e

F| W KK LA R A - Gallant Empire Ltd
([ Gallant Empire|) - SK Target Holdings
Sdn Bhd ([ SK Target Holdings]) X Loyal
Earn Ltd ([Loyal Earn]) » AR FAZARQR] »
Gallant Empire + SK Target Holdings & Loyal
Earns A Target Precast Industries Sdn Bhd
(Target Precast]) - Target Sales &
Marketing Sdn Bhd ([ Target S&MJ) K
Target Crane & Logistic Sdn Bhd ([ Target
C&LJ) #2Loh Swee Keong /L A (S B & 82
EERE—ERBEAEA)ZH  ARF]
Gallant Empire - SK Target Holdings - Loyal
Earn - Target Precast - Target S&M K&
Target C&LA & £ 201645 A 31 B K& 2017
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201645 A 318 %2017 45 A 31 B K47
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS")

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operation
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods
and IAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation

For the purpose of preparing and presenting the consolidated
financial statements for the year, the Group has consistently
applied all new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, amendments
and interpretations (“new and revised IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") which are
effective for annual accounting periods beginning on 1 June
2016 throughout the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSS") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
IFRSs that have been issued by not yet effective:

BRANFE] RAMEFT BB B B 3R 5 2
(BBt a5 22 A ) (42)

AEEHAREERAATEEMERKE
WHFT ] RSB AT BIBR B s ¥R 5 22 )

Amendments to I1AS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IFRSS

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 22
IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IAS 40

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses'

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle*

Sales or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments?

Leases®

Insurance Contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration*

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments®

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts?

Transfers of Investment Property?

or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

C Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the new and revised IFRSs will have no material impact on the

results and the financial position of the Group.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting policies which conform with IFRSs
issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements have included applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of the
reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in 1AS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;
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. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level |, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies.
Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary company begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary company and ceases when
the Group loses control over the subsidiary company.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary company
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of a subsidiary company to bring its accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statement items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing carrying amounts from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless the date of the common control
combination.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for the sales
related tax (e.g. goods and services tax).

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the

significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

AMBHREBERERREHEHNE

CRAEBNPERRIAR - WA Z

AU E R ES BRSSP A
ta;ﬁﬁéﬁo

(g ST
U> o D>

EHERREBNFEEDNRESTRER
W EREESHAR - BRI HER
BREZMIBERLT - RIERESE G4
ME BB R AT EAEE -
BERIABEN AT FEFHERED
AR EREMSEE o

FEBERHEMEZEAREREEERESR
FIHHR EZEEHERAEBERT
HEEH 2 B (RS EE A& TR
HREEFIEHHBE) SE MR EBY
%ZE

WAL B W ERRENDFEE - I
ABHRHEMRRBNEA (AR R RBER) 1F

BWA S EA TR B B R REE
A A R AT R
BN IRAR - T HERMA -

=]
BEmHENBRAEE RN RHMAERE
BEREER - BR2TE THISEEK

s AEFDHEREZEERES
R E KRR K& B



0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of goods (Continued)

J the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services
Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Rental income

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms. The aggregate costs of incentives
provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction of
rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis using
the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised and included in profit
or loss under finance costs in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which they are incurred.
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(i) Short-term employee benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are
recognised as expense in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Short-term non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave are recognised when the
absences occur.

(ii) Retirement benefits costs
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once these
contributions have been paid.

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other statement of comprehensive income because of income
or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets, if any, is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of each reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress for manufacturing purposes is carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are reclassified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 10ss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or l0ss.
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The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"). The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including receivables, amount owing from a
Director, amount owing from ultimate holding company,
amount owing from a shareholder and cash on hand and at
bank) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy
on impairment of financial assets below).

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset may be designated as FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as FVTPL.
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Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising from remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note
28(C).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of
the loans and receivables have been affected.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For loans and receivables and financial assets at FVTPL,
objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

. default or delinguency in interest or principal payments,
or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

The Group's other financial liabilities including payables,
amount owing to a director, dividend payable and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting
policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next 12 months.

The Group assesses at end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a receivable is impaired.
To determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of
the counterparty and default or significant delay in payments.
The management also considers the creditworthiness, the past
collection history of each customer, ageing analysis and
subsequent settlement of individual balances.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics. The carrying amounts at the reporting date for
receivables are disclosed in Note 18.

Information reported to Mr. Loh Swee Keong, the Director of
the Group, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"),
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance is based on the following reportable and
operating segments identified under IFRS 8 Operating
Segments:

(@ Manufacturing and trading — manufacturing and trading
of precast concrete junction boxes; and

(b)  Other building materials and services — trading of
accessories and pipes and provision of mobile crane

rental and ancillary services.

No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. WARDHER &)
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results TEHBARESE
For the year ended 31 May 2017 BZE2017F58318LFE

Other building

Manufacturing materials and
and trading services
Hithz2 s

HERES RSN b
RM’000 RM’000

A4 A4
<5 I8

Revenue A

External sales HNERSHE 33,595

Inter-segment sales DEBEIEE 1,240
Segment revenue D EBUA 34,835
Elimination B (1,240)
Group revenue EFEKA 33,595
Segment result DEPELE 10,263 10,423
Administrative expenses TR X (3,342)
Selling and distribution HERDHEAX

expenses (1,331)
Listing expenses X (6,048)
Finance costs FLEZ5 9N (57)
Other income HAlg A 948

Fair value change of financial IR A EFT ABFHHN LR
assets at fair value through BEMNAFEEZE)
profit or loss

Profit before taxation B FR B
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REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 May 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

6. WARZDEEFR (@)

DEHBARFER (&)
BE2016F5A31BLFE

Manufacturing
and trading

RERES
RM'000

A=t
< QA

Other building
materials and

services

H 32 5%
MR R AR 7S
RM'000

A=
< B

Revenue A

External sales INERSHE 29,089 4,192 33,281

Inter-segment sales DEBEIEE - 846 846
Segment revenue D EBUA 29,089 5,038 34,127
Elimination BN (846)
Group revenue EFEKA 33,281
Segment result DEPELE 9,589 340 9,929
Administrative expenses TR (2,198)
Selling and distribution HERDHEAX

expenses (1,256)
Finance costs BhE B A (75)
Other income Hi g A 154
Fair value change of financial A {EzH ABZEH S R

assets at fair value through BEMNANFEEE

profit or loss 12
Profit before taxation B T34 1 32 6,566
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REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies as described in Note
4. Segment results represents the profit from each segment
without allocation of administrative expenses, listing expenses,
selling and distribution expenses, finance costs, other income,
fair value change of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and taxation. This is the measure reported to CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

WAR D RRE R ()

’*“BH&AEZ% = (&)

RED MG BREMFEAPTROAE

= E+E5(ﬁﬁ$ﬁﬂ DEEBTIIEAR D BT
EﬁZFfﬁSE CETRAX  HERDHFAN R
BRA - R - A FEFABRED
EMEENAFEEHRHIANS D FH
wA e WRRERDELRRBAMEENM
WETERRERRANTET X

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates with DEEEENEN TS ERRE T AR
discount given for certain bulk purchase. REBATHNINE -

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities TXARAEBEERBERIREREE
by reportable and operating segment: DEEIDHI DT

As at 31 May 2017

M2017E5H831H

Other
building
materials
and services
Hin2 5

Consolidated
assets assets
(liabilities) ~ Unallocated (liabilities)
PHEE REBE
BERES  MRRES (B8 (BfE)
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

PN At A A%
E4= <A E4= <A

Segment

Manufacturing
and trading

Non-current assets FRBEE 3,203 3,619

Current assets nYEE 14,013 20,862 4,151
Non-current liabilities FrRoas (411) (411) (147)
Current liabilities mEEE (6,031) (6,652) (2,939)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. WARDHESR (&)
(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PTHEEREE®)
As at 31 May 2016 R2016F5A831H

Other building Segment Consolidated
Manufacturing  materials and assets assets
and trading services (liabilities)  Unallocated (liabilities)

Hifes AHEE A
HERBS  MHRES (BR) KA
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

o%  FoE AR %

Non-current assets FRBEE 2,242 430 2,672 - 2,672
Current assets RBEE 11,494 6,69 18,190 - 18,190
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (85) S (85) (106) (191)
Current liabilities mBaE (7,515) (1,287) (8,802) (286) (9,088)
All assets and liabilities are allocated to operating segments RETFERRITRS BT LMRAX -
other than certain cash on hand and at bank, deferred listing Hith N 5IE - BB REEREEEN
expenses, other payables, current and deferred tax liabilities. FBEERBEIEELEDE -
Other segment information Hith o EBE R

For the year ended 31 May 2017 BE2017F5A31ALFE

Other building

Manufacturing materials and
and trading services Total

HthzE 5

HERES R R BB S et
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000

A+ A4 A+
<5 I8 I8

Amounts included in the BIEERTE D R
measure of segment profitor  BEKHEFEE
loss or segment assets: o

Additions to non-current NEFERBEE
assets
Factory rental THREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. WARDHESR (&)
(Continued)
Other segment information (continued) Hihn &R 2)
For the year ended 31 May 2016 BZE2016F5831HLFE

Other building
Manufacturing materials and
and trading services

H st
HERES PR R AR 5
RM'000 RM'000

A= A==
~X A < A

Amounts included in the BREFED I HE I
measure of segment profitor  E5i83kH EEEH]
loss or segment assets: T8 -
Additions to non-current NEERBEE
assets 413 - 413
Factory rental ImMAE 376 - 376
Geographical information HhEEE
No geographical segment information is presented as the WME2mE S LER REAIREZS
Group’s revenue is all derived from Malaysia based on the ERBIRHEMME - REERN DU ALY
location of trading and services delivered and the Group's non- KEERFEDE - MRBEEN TR -
current assets are located in Malaysia by physical location of AREBHIETREBEE R ERAD -
assets.
Information about major customers FEEFER
No customer contributes over 10% of total sales of the Group EEERSEEHERTS SR ANEE 258
for each of the reporting years. B 10% ©

HHREBAERADT / 2017F 3K



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

7. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 7. EEME
Mr. Loh Swee Keong and Mr. Tan Cheng Siong were appointed Loh Swee Keong 5t 4 K& Tan Cheng Siong 5&
as Directors of the Company on 28 October 2016 and 9 45 BIR 2016510 A28 H %2016 % 12 A
December 2016 respectively. Details of the emoluments paid SRABZAARARTESE - BENHEMNEA
or payable to the Directors of the Company (including RIZEENME (BEESERARARESR
emoluments for their services as employees or Directors at the EASETBEESESNRENE) F15
Group prior to becoming the Directors of the Company) are as N
follows:
For the year ended 31 May 2017 HZE2017F5A31BLFE

Mr. Loh Swee Mr. Tan Cheng
Keong Siong Total
Loh Swee Tan Cheng

Keong &4 Siong 5%t &

Mt

RM’'000 RM'000 RM’000

A4 P -
=2 I8

Directors ==
Other emoluments: HEEHE
Salaries e
Bonus TE4T
Contributions to Employees  EE 2 &S ([{EE
Provident Fund ("EPF") AES DERMZE)
(Note)
Total FEE
For the year ended 31 May 2016 HZE2016F5HA31BLFE

o =%
<A

Mr. Loh Swee
Keong
Loh Swee

Keong 5t 4
RM’000

A=
< =3

Directors 2%

Other emoluments: Hibe

Salaries Fe 192

Contributions to EPF (Note) BEABESHR(MT) 36
228
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 May 2017 (Continuea)
Notes:

The Group is required by Malaysian law to make monthly contributions
to the EPF, a statutory defined contribution plan for all its eligible
employees based on certain prescribed rates of the employees’
applicable remuneration. Contributions are charged to profit or loss in
the period in which they relate. The contributions to EPF are disclosed
separately and the contributions to EPF are included in salaries,
bonuses, allowances and other staff benefits. Once the contributions
have been paid, the Group has no further payment obligations.

No Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed by the
Company during the year. Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Chu Kin Ming and Mr.
Lee, Alexander Patrick were appointed as Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company on 27 June 2017. No emoluments were paid
to any of the Independent Non-executive Directors during both years.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of the office.

No directors’ emoluments were waived during both years.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group included 1 and 2
Directors for the year ended 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017
respectively, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note
7. Details of the remuneration for the remaining 4 and 3 highest
paid employees who are neither a Director nor chief executive
of the Company are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR RRME

EESME @)
BE2017F5831B8LFE#)
Wzt -

[RADEPIZRAEEIZARREAERH
R EAREESERFMOETAIALE A
FAETAARESRIETE R EHRNE - 4
FRBAHANERETR - BERAESHOHKA
ERHE - MAEREARESFELARREEBER
& AL RREREMEERRRNZA - —BIFH
HR - AEEEE - SHREE -

FRN - ANARWEEIBILIFERITES - BRE
FA - KRR ERTHBEER2017F6 27
ARZETARNRRRNB IR TES - RMEF
BN BERE B IR TE S HMEABE -

REREFERN  AEBLEAARREELNE
NS - (ERINARE BN INAL KB R 52
Eh S Ve R R 1A

RRBEEEAR  BEEERENS -

TEBREFMES
rEBLEGRFMEEBSNBEHE
201695 831A R2017F5A31HILFE
W1R2E2ESE - BEEFMFIEERMET
BRTARIEERTMERS (FARAES
FEETHAR) OFMFBEERIOT :

2017 2016
2017 &£ 2016

RM’'000 RM'000

A A
<A < B

Salaries and allowances e KoEEh 446
Bonuses TEAT 33
Contributions to EPF BERESMHR 78

557
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) 8. IEERSFMEES
The number of the highest paid employees whose T &S &= EoES (HFBN T AT EE)
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: HIAEL :

2016

2016 F

Nil to RM500,000 (equivalent to HK$ nil T4 & £ 500,000 % & (FHE R
to HK$1,000,000) T L 1,000,00047T) 5
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to RRABEFERN NEBETERARFRSG
the five highest paid employees of the Company as an EmTNEEXNEMME  EAMAR
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as 5= B ol P N AR = [ 15 ) 22 ok 1E R B T
compensation for loss of the office. HHE -
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. ®EMRAK

Interest on finance leases EEHEEF B 14
Interest on trust receipt loan EEREE %A A 24
Interest on bank overdraft BITETRE 14
Interest on term loan FEHE R A 23

75
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

10. BRBEADEF

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging/ BB AR R AR (GFA) LT &\ %E

(crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense

Staff costs, excluding Directors'
remuneration
— Salaries, wages and other benefits
— Contribution to EPF

Minimum lease payments on rented land

Minimum lease payments on rented crane

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of investment property

Bad debts written off/(recovered)

Allowance for doubtful debts

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Rental income from investment property

Interest income

Unrealised gain on foreign exchange

Realised gain on foreign exchange

B

2017
2017 ¥

RM’000

pae- -
=

2 Gllia
ERAAXNFEERA

425

15,878
BIRA - TEEEFME

—%e IERHEMAE
—RERATEEHK

FIE LA RER SR
i EEE#FIER SR
ME - WERRBITE

REWEE

BsE,(km) iR
R

HEME - BFERREN KR

BAMERS WA
TN

RERE R
B S i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

11.

TAXATION 11. BE

Malaysia corporate income tax: HRP R (R EAEH

Current year KEEF

Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR
Deferred tax (Note 24): IRIERRIE (FY7E24) -

Current year KEEF

Overprovision in prior years BEFERERE
Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the statutory tax ERAECEMEHRESERTFELRME
rate on the estimated assessable profits for each of the FTERBURFIRE T B EHE -
assessable year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RRMEE

11. TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation as follows:

1. BEE)

2017
2017 &

RM'000

For

FEBAEGRT AN EIRMOT -

2016
2016 5
RM'000

A
< =

Profit before taxation FRELRTR A 6,566
Statutory tax rate EERE 24%
Taxation at applicable statutory tax rate  IEREE R R EHHIIE 1,576
Tax saving of 5% (Note) EH5% (Bat) (53)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AN R IE 2

tax purpose 148
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARBTBRARNTH G L

purpose =
Deferred tax assets not recognised REREERIBEE -
Effect of different tax rate of entities REAFDEE R AL L EEEM

operating in other jurisdictions TR EE -
Underprovision of income tax payable in - @7 S E EFr 15 89

prior year BENE =
Overprovision of deferred tax in prior year @7 F[E EER B A B R R =
Taxation for the year FEBIE 1,671
Note:  Under the Income Tax Act 1967 of Malaysia, small and medium Mt RIEBREE197FMBH L HE

2016E5 318 K% 201745 A3 B L E
55 2R 78 38 5 R AR 452,500,000 % F
A T /N BEE 3 BIRR T R 19% &
18% it & = 43 500,000 % & Y & 52 B Wt A
BRFTS R o =R 3B 500,000% 7 &9 fE
ERUWA - B E2016F5 8318 KX2017
FSANBUEFE  CEMBHRBES I
524% o

enterprises in Malaysia with paid-up capital amounting to
RM2,500,000 or less are subject to income tax at the rate of
19% and 18% for the year ended 31 May 2016 and 31 May
2017 respectively, on chargeable income amounting to
RM500,000 or less. For chargeable income in excess of
RM500,000, the corporate income tax rate is 24% for the year
ended 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

12.

13.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the following data:

12.

R (&8) &7
BREAN(EBIE), BF THIRE T 20t
=

2017
2017 &

RM'000

For

(Loss)/Earnings for the purpose of basic
(loss)/earnings per share ((loss)/profit
for the year attributable to the owners
of the Company

an

RARETEARRRER AGR
BER(ER), BN (ER),/

4,895

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating
basic (loss)/earnings per share

ARG ESRER (BR),/
BN & BN RE T I

Number of
shares
f&1n &8

Number of

shares
B8 E

317,020,000

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic (loss)/earnings per share has been
determined on the assumption that the Reorganisation and the
capitalisation issue as described in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements has been effective on 1 June 2015.

No diluted (loss)/earnings per share information has been
presented for the year ended 31 May 2017 and 2016 as there
were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during both
years.

DIVIDEND
Interim dividend of RM2,000,000 was declared by the subsidiary
companies during the financial year ended 31 May 2016.

Other than disclosed above, no dividend was paid or declared

by the Company since its incorporation or by other group
entities for both years.
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13.

AR EERER(EE), BF6HLRRK
INAE T B RER AR S B RS IR R M +E 35 A
MEEAREREEITER2015F6 A1
BAEBMET °

ARBZE 2017 F R 201655431 HILFE
HEERTEEEE AR  RLEHEW
B E 25 ShEE (BR)  BRNMEN -

BRE
A EBR% 2.2,000,000% & B B A RN E
F2016F5A3TBLETHFEEIR

B EXPIIREESIN - AR (B EHEMAKIL
PAZR) sk ELfh SR B B8 (XX M (B 7 /2 ) 3 4%
RN REIRAERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRE
Leasehold
landand  Plant and Motor Office  Computer Construction
building machinery  vehicles Renovation Factory equipment  software in progress Total
AEL BE
g R#H fE k8 A IF HORF EKEE  REIR
RMO00  RMOOO  RM000  RM'000 RMO00  RM000  RM000  RM000
T%E - 5E : E R 5 28 28
Cost B
At 1 June 2015 R15E6A18 365 1,502 1124 162 28 191 641 19 = 4222
Additions HE S S 126 61 S i N - 19 m
At 31 May 2016 R016E5R317 365 1,502 1250 23 258 162 662 19 194 4635
Additions HE S 775 32 175 6 70 kY - - 1483
Disposal & - - w3 - - - - - - 3
Reclassification Exip - 19 - - - - - - (194) -
At31May 2017 R1E5A3NE 365 2471 1,199 398 320 32 701 19 - 5,705

Accumulated depreciation  3tir&

At 1June 2015 RA15E6F1H % 897 45 %3 124 73 304 17 - 2,049
Depreciation for the year ERE 7 9% 119 1 % 15 5 1 - 35
At 31 May 2016 R16F5A31H 103 990 564 104 150 88 357 18 - 2,374
Depreciation for the year EpiE 7 157 12 3 il n 5 1 - 0%
Disposal & S = (313 = S S S = - (313
At 31 May 2017 ROTESANA 110 1147 375 138 179 110 409 19 - 2,481
Carrying value BEE

At 31 May 2016 RO6E5ANA 260 512 686 119 108 74 305 1 194 2,261
At 31 May 2017 RO7E5A31E 255 1324 824 260 | 122 292 - - 3218
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRME

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building 2%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 10%
Renovation 10%
Mould 10%
Factory 10%
Office equipment 10%
Computer software 20%

The following are the carrying values of the assets held under
finance leases included in property, plant and equipment:

14. ¥ - BERSRE @)
L% - BE REEER (ER TR

NESER AT FRITE -

e+ RIEF 2%
TR R AR 10%
i 10%
=3 10%
A 10%
TR 10%
AR 10%
BASEF 20%

UTAREREHERANEE (EFAY
£ BEREEN)EREIE

Motor vehicles RE
Plant and machinery B R

377

377

The Group has pledged leasehold land and building with a
carrying value of approximately RM262,000 and RM255,000 as
at 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively, to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in
Note 23.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RRMEE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15. REWHE
RM'000
*H

Cost R
At 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 MR2016E5 A31H X201 7F5H31H 450
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE
At 1 June 2015 MR2015F 6 A1H 29
Charge for the year FRMk 10
At 31 May 2016 MR2016FE5A31H 39
Charge for the year FRMk 10
At 31 May 2017 R2017F5A31H8 49
Carrying value REE
At 31 May 2017 R2017F5HA31H 401
At 31 May 2016 R2016E5831H 411

The investment property, comprising of a freehold land and
building in Malaysia, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over
50 years.

Rental income earned by the Group from the investment
property which is leased out under operating leases, amounted
to approximately RM25,000 and RM22,000 for the year ended
31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively. Direct operating
expenses incurred in respect of the investment property
amounted to RMé81 and RM887 for the year ended 31 May
2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively.

REYMF(BRBERADKAFEL D RE
F)IABESERS0F A LT ETE o

HZE2016F5A31H R2017F5A31H 1
FE - AEBEREMERELSEHE
) IS WA D B4 5250009 F &
22,0004 % » #H E 201645 A 318 %2017
FSANBLFE  BRENMEELENE
BRI DR ABISERSSTSE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRME

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

Fair values of the Group's investment property at 31 May 2016
and 31 May 2017 were RM690,000 and RM690,000 respectively.
The fair values of the investment property have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on those dates by
Messrs. Laurelcap Sdn. Bhd. (the “Valuers”), Suite E-7-2, East
Wing, Subang Square, Jalan SS 15/4G, Subang Jaya, 47630,
Subang Jaya, Selangor, 47500, Malaysia, using the comparison
method by referring to recent transactions involving similar
properties in the vicinity. The Valuers are independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group, and are
members of the Board of Valuers, Appraisals & Estate Agency,
Malaysia. The valuation is a Level 3 fair value estimation. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

16. INVENTORIES

At cost: B
Raw materials and consumables R4 R B R R
Finished goods BURY SR

15. REW*E (%)

M2016F5 8318 K2017F5A8318 ° &
EEMBEWE N TFED BIA690,0002H
K 690,000 F - HEME L FETIBE
Messrs. Laurelcap Sdn. Bhd. ([{4{EER ] - it
Hi & Suite E-7-2, East Wing, Subang Square,
Jalan SS 15/4G, Subang Jaya, 47630, Subang
Jaya, Selangor, 47500, Malaysia) 7* 3% % B
SR BE 2 Z R B A0 B 0 R R
LUMENZ HIEL R EERS - HERMA
BUESERBEMERN  GXAEETEH
- WABREDGER  TEMRESE
REBKE - HEAE=RATEMHE -
REFTMEQLFER  MENGE MRE
Rz ARITRE -

16. &

2017
2017 &

RM’'000

A=
<A

600
449

1,049

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Unit trust funds in Malaysia, at fair value
BRAYE

BRADWEMETEES

17. ROATEAEBZNEREE

2017
2017 &
RM’000

Pae- -
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n _\éﬂji%ﬁ%% Bﬂ-%}

18. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT 18. BWRIE - RERFEMARK

Trade receivables B 5 e IE 13,301
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREME (176)
13,125
Other receivables Hofh fE IR IR 25
Deposits e 278
Prepayments TER R 92
Deferred listing expenses IR TR 2,353
15,873
The amounts due from trade debtors are unsecured, do not EWE SENEBRFETE  MAER
carry any interest and the credit term granted by the Group IR THEEBMNTF3I0E1208 -

ranges from 30 to 120 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of NTAEBESRZEEHIIINE RN FIE
allowance for doubtful debts) presented based on the invoice OB REREE) BRIC AT ©
date.

1-30 days 1230H 1,988
31-60 days 31&260H

61-90 days 61290H

91-120 days 9121208

More than 120 days 120 H A E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRME

18. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT

(Continued)

As of 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017, trade receivables of
RM6,584,000 and RM3,409,000 respectively, were past due but
not impaired. These relate to a number of diversified customers
for whom there was no recent history of default and have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the Directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
allowance for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as these balances were either subsequently settled
or there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered recoverable.

The following is an ageing of trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired based on invoice date.

18.

BWRIE - BERFANRK @)

EHZE2016F5A318 X201745H8318 »
755 6,584,000 % 7 & 3,409,000 E W E
SERFBEDHBHERRE - FEZES
REZTRANEF  #SRFPLELHE
W - WERAEERS RIFOTELE -
REBTER  AARESRABERZ
SHEBELRERE BRAZSEAHBESE
BREEREEEERTEENES M
ZE AR AR B AT AN E -

UTARERZENHEABHERRENE
2 WK IAR R

2017
2017 &

2016
2016 F
RM'000

A==
< B

RM'000

A%
<A

31-60 days 31260H -
61-90 days 612 90H 2,556
91-120 days 912120 H 1,334
More than 120 days 1208 A E 2,694

6,584

The movement in allowance for doubtful debts:

2017
2017 &

2016
2016
RM'000

A=
~< B

RM’'000

P
<A

At beginning of year REH -
Impairment losses recognised BEERBAEBRE 176
At end of year RER 176

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts is one individually
impaired trade receivable with balance of approximately
RM176,000 as at 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 which has
been placed in severe financial difficulties. The Group does not
hold any collateral over this balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

19. AMOUNTS OWING FROM/(TO) A DIRECTOR,
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY AND A
SHAREHOLDER
Particulars of the amount owing from a director discloseable
pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinances are as
follows:

19. W () EE  BRRERAF
ST

REFEERFAGIATHRENEKESEK
HFRWT

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year

Balance at
1 June 2016
20164
6H1H

Y & &R B A5 R
RM’000 RM'000

FoE 4%

Balance at
31 May 2017
#2017 F
58318

Mr. Loh Swee Keong Loh Swee Keong 5& 4 177 177

The amounts owing from/(to) a director, Mr. Loh Swee Keong,
is non-trade nature, unguaranteed, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. As at 31 May 2017, including in the

FEUR (FEf ) E % Loh Swee Keong 5t 4 3
BAFBFHUE EER EBEF 05
MBI BERER - N2017E5A8318 - &

amount owing to a director of RM570,000 represents the
unpaid balance of the acquisition of the subsidiary companies

and has fully settled on 17 July 2017.

The amount owing from ultimate holding company is non-trade

nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

The amount owing from a shareholder is non-trade nature,

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

20. SHORT TERM BANK DEPOSITS PLEDGED WITH

BANKS

Short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less carry interest at prevailing market rate of 3.30%
and 3.15% per annum as at 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017
respectively. The short term bank deposits are pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group as

disclosed in Note 22.

20.

ANENZEFRIAS70,0008 TS ERAEK
BB RARMNKRMER BB R201747
B17 BREES -

U SEERERARFRARFEZEE - &
R BER RERAREREER -

U RFARESEE  BEE &
SREAREREER -

ERTFRITHEHRTER

M2016F5 8318 K201745A318 R
THHAA=MA LU THEBETER
TiziE AT I5F R % 5 511 3.30% & 3.15% &1
B HHRITIFHRCEREAERT &5
B K —RIRITE BRI (0 22

%) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

21. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 21. BERERESER

Trade payables B SN FIA

Other payables M IAE

Accrued listing fees st ETER

Accrued charges EsrER

Tenant's deposit LISk &

Advance from customers BEPBHK

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented BEENRIERREE R MNER DT
based on the invoice dates. N

2017
2017 &
RM’000

A=
<A

1-30 days 1230H 1,451

31-60 days 31£60H
61-90 days 61£290H
91-120 days 91%120H
Over 120 days 1208 £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR RRME

21.

22.

PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued)
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 to 75
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

Tenant deposits represent the refundable deposits to tenants
upon termination or cancellation of operating lease
arrangements. The tenant deposits are refundable to tenants
within 60 days upon the termination of the tenancy agreement.
The tenants’ deposits to be settled after twelve months from
the end of the reporting periods based on the lease terms
amounted to RM4,000 and RM4,000 as at 31 May 2016 and 31
May 2017 respectively.

FINANCE LEASES

1. BENRERESER @)

BENTHEERRIETSH - AEER
B B % R B IR IR PARE R P B B AN R IR
BEEEHRALS o

HPRERENGERER IR ILHIUR
RAREEFPWZS - HPEReNEE
MEL IR ORAREES - RIFEEH
BRBEHREFT 12EARGEENEFIZ
BR2016FE5A318 R201765A318 5
734,000 %% K 4,0002 5 °

. MERAE

2017 2016
2017 &

2016 €
RM’000 RM’000

A== A
<A ~< B

Analysed for reporting purposes as: RMEENSTOT -
Current liabilities nEBEE 93
Non-current liabilities ERBAalE 69
162

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles,
plant and machinery and office equipment. The Directors
determined the leases to be finance leases as the ownership
of the relevant assets will be transferred to the Group upon the
payment of the last instalment of the individual agreement. The
average lease termis 4 and 5 years as at 31 May 2016 and 31
May 2017 respectively. Interest rates underlying all obligations
under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates
ranging from 6.25% to 7.10% and 4.70% to 7.10% per annum
for the year ended 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively.

REBNBRERHAELETER BB &
BMARP DR EEEETZSHER
MERE AAMEBEEENMEREENE
ApEEE—NREEET A5H-
M2016% 58318 %2017F5A8318  F
HHRERD P AAFERSEF - HE201645
A31BK20177F5A3MBLFE  EM
ETHMEEENHABRNETINSR@AS
KB AERTEE - NFFFE6.25%F7.10% K&
4.70%ZE7.10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

22. FINANCE LEASES (Continued) 22. EMASE )

Total outstanding: REAT4BEE -
Not later than one year BB —F
Later than one year and not later than BB —FETBBESF
five years
Less: Finance charges B S E R
Principal outstanding AERNAEE
Less: Amount due for settlement within -~ 35 : R 128 A AR HI&EEH
12 months (Shown under current FEGIRRSBEEET)
liabilities)
Amount due for settlement after K128 A BB B E IR
12 months
Finance leases are denominated in RM. Certain finance leases BMEREINLETE - ETREHERE
are guaranteed by Mr. Loh Swee Keong, a Director and Ms. Loh = Loh Swee Keong 5t A& I Loh Swee Keong
Lily, the sibling of Mr. Loh Swee Keong. The Directors SHERMBIRLONh Ly THER - EERR
represented that the guarantee will be released in the B ARG R R A RARRR

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR RRME

23. BANK BORROWINGS 23. RITERX

2017
2017 &

RM’'000

A==
<A

Current — secured BER — B IR
Term loan TEER 115
Trust receipt loan EEBIEER 285
Bank overdraft SRITHE X 199
Carrying amount of bank borrowings AR —FRNERRITER
repayable within one year BRTEE 599
Non-current — secured term loan JEBNHA — FEEEFIER
repayable Within a period of more than  FHIE R AHBIBE—F
one year but not more than two years BRBBMRE 16
615
The term loan bore interest at Base Lending Rate (“BLR”") plus R2016F5A318  THERKEEEBE
1.5% per annum as at 31 May 2016. FE([BEBERR])MEFELS%TE
The trust receipt loan bore interest at Islamic Base Rate (“IBR") 201658318 » ErtlIEERZFH
plus 1.5% per annum as at 31 May 2016. BEEMNX((FHEMEERE]) NFH X
1.5%5t & °
The bank overdraft bore interest at IBR plus 1.5% per annum as M2016F 58318 @ RITELIRFHEE
at 31 May 2016. HEF R INEF R 15%FHE ©
The bank borrowings facilities are secured by: RITEFREHATERER
(i)  leasehold land and building with a carrying amount of ()  M2016F5A31H k2017%5H31H
RM262,000 and RM255,000 as at 31 May 2016 and 31 BREE 5 Bl 5262,000% & K& 255,000
May 2017 respectively; SENHET I RET
(i) fixed deposit of RM1,349,000 and RM1,059,000 as at 31 (i)  MR2016F5A318 &2017F5H31H
May 2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively; and 541,349,000 9 % & 1,059,000 % &
WEBER &
(i) personal guarantee by Mr. Loh Swee Keong, a Director of (i) A A)E FLoh Swee Keong %t 4 12
the Company. The Directors of the Company represented HOBARER - RRAREERT * %
that the guarantee will be released in the foreseeable RGP A RS R ER bR o
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

24.

EEHEBEE

2017
2017 &

2016
2016 F
RM’000

A=
~< B

RM’000

A==
<A

At beginning of year REFE] 106
Charged to profit or loss (Note 11): EEER (M 11)

Property, plant and equipment VI - BB KR -
At end of year REFER 106

The deferred tax liabilities mainly represent the taxable
temporary differences arising from property, plant and
equipment.

25. OTHER RESERVE

The other reserve at 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017
represented the aggregate amount of the fully paid registered
or paid-in capital of Target Precast, Target S&M, Target C&L,
Gallant Empire, SK Target Holdings and Loyal Earn. As at 31
May 2017, the amount represents the capital contribution from
a pre-IPO investor. Pursuant to a subscription agreement, the
pre-IPO investor agreed to subscribe for, and Gallant Empire
agreed to allot and issue 388 ordinary shares of Gallant Empire,
which represented 27.95% equity interest in Gallant Empire, to
the pre-IPO investor for a total subscription price of
HK$15,000,000 (approximately equivalent to RM8,579,000).

As part of the Reorganisation, Mr. Loh transferred his equity
interest in Target Precast, Target S&M and Target C&L to SK
Target Holdings for a total consideration of RM570,000. After
the transfer, Target Precast, Target S&M and Target C&L
became wholly-owned subsidiary companies of SK Target
Holdings.
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25.

EXERBEERBBEIEEDNE BEX
RBELNERVERIEEE

Hitf# 1%

M2016% 5 A31 8 k20175 A31 A E
f % & $ETarget Precast - Target S&M -
Target C&L - Gallant Empire ~ SK Target
Holdings ¥ Loyal Earn 89 2 sx i sk B Uk &
AABEE - R2017F5A31H BEASER
BERAABERIREENTE - RIER
Bz BRAAREEAREERERE
K Gallant Empire R Z A & X A5 & A%
& & B 3 I 317 388 iR Gallant Empire i 38
% (485 7 Gallant Empire 8 27.95% A #) -
4 3R B 8 /515,000,000 7t (B E R4
8,579,000 %) °

EREAM—IH  Loh £ E M Target
Precast - Target S&M K Target C&L A% &
3% T SK Target Holdings - #2 1% f& /& 570,000
<5 o B 1% > Target Precast - Target S&M
K Target C&L X A SK Target Holdings (92 &
=N



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RRMEE

26. SHARE CAPITAL
The share capital as at 31 May 2017 represented the issued
share capital of the Company. Pursuant to the Reorganisation,
the Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 11 November 2016. The share
capital as at 31 May 2017 represents the share capital of the
Company with details as follows:

26. RA

R2017FE5A3TAMRAEERARRAT R
BTN o IRIBEMH - AR R 20165 11
A1 AKAEB RIERASEBERA [ R R
ARl R2017FS AN AR A(HER
RRABHIRA) WFFBET ¢

Share
capital
&N

Number of
shares

RIDEE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEO0.01E LML AR
Authorised: EE
At date of incorporation/31 May 2017 MEEMAR S B E,

(note a) 2017 5 A31H (Kf:ta) 38,000,000 380,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRABE :
At date of incorporation (note a) ReEfak sz B8 (Hfata) 1 -
Issue of shares on Reorganisation (note b) E4AKZ4TAR 15 (K155 D) 9,999 100
At 31 May 2017 M2017F5A31H 10,000 100

Notes:

(@  On 28 October 2016, the Company was incorporated and
registered as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands with
an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 comprising
38,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and paid up share
capital of HK$0.01 comprising 1 ordinary share of HK$0.01 each.

(b)  On 11 November 2016, Merchant World and Greater Elite
transferred 1,000 and 388 ordinary shares of Gallant Empire to
the Company respectively, and in consideration thereof, the
Company allotted and issued as fully paid an additional 7,204
ordinary shares to Merchant World and 2,795 ordinary shares to
Greater Elite. After the said transfers, Gallant Empire became a
wholly-owned subsidiary company of the Company.

All ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu with
the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.

it -

2016 F10 A28 - RARIKHEE
SEMKIREMAERRATR  EE
A% < 7% 380,000 7% 7T (82 & 38,000,000 i
FREECOIEBITHEEIR) KUK
FOOMET(EE1RTREME0OE
TLROE B o

#2016 411 A 11 8 » Merchant World
X Greater Elite 2 51/ #5 1,000 % K 388 %
Gallant Empire®) & @A T AL A
MIEABRNRE - RARIBRRAE
A 8 & 1T B YN, 204 B8 L @ AR T
Merchant World }2.2,7950% & & A% F
Greater Elite 5 - it # 3% 1% - Gallant
Empire K AR AT EEH B AR °

PIERFRETHEBREZRRENT
BRAESTEZARSMAL -
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27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as going concerns while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of finance leases,
bank borrowings and equity balance. Equity balance consists
of equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
an on-going annual basis. As part of this review, the
management of the Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends as well as the issue of new debt and repayment of
debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. €T H
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) €I A¥ER

2017
2017 &
RM’000

A=
<A

Financial assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash &2k & fE W I8 (B35 F 58

on hand and at bank) kiR1TIRE) 16,301
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFESABENESREE 835
Financial liabilities sRas
Amortised cost BESER AR 8,725

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BAEREEEE B BERBUER

and policies
The Group's major financial instruments and details of AEENTEsMTARZESMT
these financial instruments are disclosed in the BEMFBERNEENERE - GzEe
respective notes. The risks associated with these b T EL AR R Y B b R AR R 5% S R
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate PR A EREANAT o

these risks are set out below.
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Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to the Group’s bank balances as well as variable-
rate bank borrowings.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow interest rate risk as a
result of changes in market interest rates and will
consider hedging changes in market interest rates should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances and
bank borrowings as the management of the Company
considers that the interest rate fluctuation on bank
balances and bank borrowings are minimal and the
impact from the exposure to interest rate risk sensitivity
is considered insignificant.

Credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk is primarily due to the
collectability risk of the trade receivables. The length of
the credit period granted by the Group will depend on
the customers’ scale of operation, reputation and
credibility. The Group performs on-going credit evaluation
on the financial condition of trade debtors and tightly
monitors the overdue debts. The Group will take the
necessary follow up action in case of long outstanding
debts or when the above credit evaluation results draw
the attention of management. In addition, the
management reviews the recoverable amount of the
trade receivables individually and collectively at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts as set out in
Note 5. The credit policies have been followed by the
Group and are considered to be effective in limiting the
Group's exposure to credit risk.
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Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which might cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arises from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
with its exposure spread over a large number of
customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with good credit
ratings and the Group has limited exposure to any single
financial institution.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’'s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities which has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for the
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

EEmR (&)

REBREHR - AKEREF 7 RE
BT B ATIER AN G B B 5 18 5k 1 1
M&REERR - TWRENGEME
ARREFREREE RS REENK
HEfE °

AEEL@mEAEROEERR B
HERDHEARES «

HREF I RABRIFEEFRNR
17 BARSEE R ER E B
HHNRERER  MAKERDES
MEERBRITAR -

REBESER
EERRBESERE - REEHIHR
SRR EEYHKFETERILAS
HEBSEEEERRRAR/NERE
BRBREESHKF  WHIRE
MENBHTE

TRFAVAEBITESHABOF
BRANFH - ZREBEAEEAIFEENX
NRN&RF BHNFEITEERBER
MRAREREINT - TRBEENDH
BRE % 5K A B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRME

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows,
to the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted
average  On demand or
effective  less than 12
interest rate months
T REXY
ERAE  12@AUT
RM000

AL
NA

28. €I E (&)

(b)

1102 years

152F
RM'000

At
3R

MERREEEERBE®)

REE SRR (F)
RPBENERASHERE - W
ERFENE - ARRRSBREE
HIRROM R ARG H

Total
undiscounted  Total carrying
Over2years  cash flows amount
AERRE
28N E REAE AREHE
RM000 RM000 RM'000

Ax At At
EX EX Bl

As at 31 May 2016 R2016E5531R

Payables and accrued charges  JERFURR B ER - 6,110 - - 6,110 6,110

Finance leases BEHE 6.25-7.10 104 18 58 180 162

Bank borrowings iOEE 33590 623 16 - 639 415

Divicend payable Effks 2,000 - - 2,000 2,000
8,337 34 58 8,929 8,387

As at 31 May 2017 R217E5A3A

Payables and accrued charges R RIETER .
Amountowingtoabirector  EREZHE c
Finance leases HERE 4.70-7.10
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RRMEE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities

() Fair value of the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is determined in
accordance with the quoted prices in the over-the-
counter market. This valuation falls under Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy and is based on the monthly
reports provided by the fund manager, which
represent the fair value of the mutual fund.

(i) The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of

28. €I H (%)

() XEEMNEREERTHMAE

A PE

0]

(if)

AEBRAFEFABSNES
BEEN D FEIRESINR
BEE - LEEBRATERE
ME—F ARBESERER
HOEAREHE  EKRE
BEESWAFE-

EERR REeMBRRER

other financial assets and other financial liabilities BERAARNEAMESREE
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated kEMmemBENRAERRL
financial statements approximate their fair values. NTEEE - HthemEER
Fair values of the other financial assets and other HEHthemaEnRmED RE

financial liabilities have been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models

AREERARFRASTE
DWEE - BREEHRABUE

based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the ABREHFHEERBRAME
most significant inputs being the discount rate that o
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.
29. LEASE COMMITMENT 29. HEXRE
The Group as lessee FEBEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMEPR - AEERBETATEUHNLEE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- HEB R RSIERE N FAPER T 55
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: FER

2017
2017 &

RM’000

For

Within one year —FR 30
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KERENFIEAREBER — 18 T B8y
Group for a piece of land. The lease is negotiated for a team of e HELEREAIIF  WAIEH3
3 years and is cancellable on giving a notice of 3 months. The & A BET LAY - HERIFATE -

rental is fixed for 3 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

29.

30.

31.

LEASE COMMITMENT (Continued) 29. HEFRE®)

The Group as lessor rEBEREHEA

The property held by the Group has committed tenants and YA BFERETNEAHEP X
lease rentals are negotiated annually. HERS -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RBERR NEERH-ZHPR TS
with a tenant for the following future minimum lease RRGIEEWHEERTA -

receivables:

2017
2017 &
RM’000

A=
<A

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years inclusive F_ERF(BEEEMS) 2
24

CAPITAL COMMITMENT 30. BEXEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following RBEHR - AEBEUTSRKEDE

capital commitments in respect of the acquisition of property, R K2 5% 18 B0 38 AN A HE

plant and equipment:

Contracted but not provided for BRTAEREHE

NON CASH TRANSACTION 31. ¥REXRSB

Addition of property, plant and equipment of RM100,000 during REZE2016F5 A 318 IEFE REZE2017
the year ended 31 May 2016 and RM729,000 during the year F5A3BIEFERERED R 100,000
ended 31 May 2017 was financed by new finance lease LEKT29,000L EWWE - BRE REBHEH
agreements. TREHERRRTEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 32. RITBATRINER
During the year, the Company has direct and indirect FEN - ARBRTIMBRAREEEER
shareholders/equity interests in the following subsidiary R A RS -
companies:

Equity attributable to the Group

REEEGRE
Issued and

Name of Place of fully paid-up  Asat31 Asat31
Company incorporation share capital May2016 May 2017 Principal activities

BEITR R2016FE R2017F&
AREH AR AL it B MEREX 5H31H 58318 FEEE
Target Precast Industries San. Bnhd.  Malaysia RM500,000 100% ' Manufacturing and trading of

BRAD 500,000 & precast concrete junction
boxes

HERBRERRERTI RS

Target Sales & Marketing San. Bhd.  Malaysia RM70,002 100% 1 Trading of precast concrete
BRAE 700024 % junction boxes and
accessories and pipes
BERMRR T ERI RN
REE
Target Crane & Logistic Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia RM100 100% " Provision of mobile crane rental
BRAED 1008%E and ancillary services
REZHAREHEER
BEMR®
Gallant Empire Limited*' British Virgins Island US$1,000 - . Investment holding
EBRIHE 1,000 7T REZRR
SK Target Holdings? Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 - 0 Investment holding
SRAD 10028 REER
Loyal Earn Limited® Hong Kong HK$1 - 0 Inactive
B $1RT EmEx
e Directly held by the Company * AAAREERS
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Notes:

None
secur

Gallant Empire Limited (“GEL") was incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability on 5 June 2016. As at the date of incorporation,
GEL was authorised to issue a maximum of 50,000 shares of
USD1 each. On 21 July 2016, 1,000 shares (representing the
entire issued share capital of GEL) were allotted and issued as
fully paid to Merchant World. As part of the Pre-IPO Investment
as described in Note 24 to the financial statements, GEL allotted
and issued as fully paid 388 shares to Greater Elite Limited
(“Greater Elite").

On 11 November 2016, as part of the Reorganisation, each of
Merchant World and Greater Elite transferred its respective
entire shareholding interests in GEL to the Company, in
consideration of Company allotting and issuing as fully paid an
additional 7,204 ordinary shares to Merchant World and 2,795
ordinary shares to Greater Elite. After the said transfers, GEL
became a wholly-owned subsidiary company of the Company.

SK Target Holdings Sdn. Bhd. (“SKTH") was incorporated in
Malaysia on 24 August 2016 with an authorised capital of
RM400,000 divided into 400,000 shares of RM1 each, and 99
shares were allotted and issued to Mr. Loh Swee Keong (“Mr.
Loh") and one (1) share was allotted and issued to Mr. Ng Thuan
Leong (“Mr. Ng"), both for cash at par value. Pursuant to a
declaration of trust executed by Mr. Ng on 14 December 2016,
Mr. Ng confirmed, inter alia, that the one (1) share held by him
was held on trust for Mr. Loh with effect from 24 August 2016
and he dealt with the said one (1) share in such manner as Mr.
Loh from time to time directed and voted at the shareholders’
meeting and board of directors’ meeting as Mr. Loh from time to
time directed. On 6 October 2016, GEL acquired 99 shares of
SKTH from Mr. Loh at the consideration of RM99 and acquired
one (1) share of SKTH from Mr. Ng at the consideration of RM1.
After the said transfers, SKTH became a wholly-owned
subsidiary company of GEL.

Loyal Earn Limited (“LEL") was incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 1 June 2016. On the date of incorporation, LEL
allotted and issued as fully paid one (1) share (representing the
entire issued share capital of LEL) to the initial subscriber, which
was then transferred to GEL at the consideration of HKD1 on 28
July 2016.

of the subsidiary companies had issued any debt
ities at the end of year.
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As at 31 May 2017, the Group has provided a performance
guarantee in respect of a project signed with Telekom Malaysia
Berhad, a customer, amounting to RM534,000 for securing a
project. This guarantee will be discharged upon the completion
of the project.

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

() Mr. Loh Swee Keong, a Director of the Company
and Ms. Loh Lily, the sibling of Mr. Loh Swee Keong,
have provided financial guarantees to certain
subsidiary companies of the Group as disclosed in
Notes 22 and 23.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
consolidated statements of financial position and in Note
19.

The remuneration paid or payable to the key
management personnel, being the Directors of the
Company, during the year is included in Note 7. The
remuneration of key management personnel is
determined with reference to the performance of the
individuals and market trends.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 June 2017, the
authorised share capital was increased from HKD380,000
comprising 38,000,000 shares at par value of HKD0.01
each to HKD100,000,000 comprising 10,000,000,000
shares of par value of HKDO0.01 each, by way of creation
of an additional 9,962,000,000 shares at par value of
HKDO0.01 each.

20176 5A3MH - AEEEHE—EF
& Telekom Malaysia Berhad 25 & #9718 H {2
HEHER - £ A534,00057 - HER
BHTER o ZEREHIEE TRIERE -

FRAEEEBRBATIUNTR
5

() A B 5E22 % 23F7 # %8 - Loh
Swee Keong o £ (AR RIESE)
X Loh Lily Zz4=(Loh Swee Keong
S ERE) B RS EE T
BRI TEIER o

BN T M ERN R A ISR K
BFE 194K EE -

FRENRENEIEETRAS (AKX
REABEF)NMHSHNME7 - T2
EEABNMEH2EEARBRET

BT -

RBEARQGRER2017FE6H27H
ABMEMAZR  FEREH
9,962,000,000 A& & AR EI{E 0.01 % 7T &Y
f&tn - JEE IR AN 380,000 7T (B 1E
38,000,000 A% & A% 1 18.0.01 7 7T /9 A%
) # 100,000,000 7T( & ¥
10,000,000,000 % % A% [ & 0.01 % 7T
KIRRD) o
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On the same date, pursuant to the written resolutions
passed by the shareholders of the Company, conditional
upon the crediting of the Company’s share premium
account as a result of the issue of the public offer shares
and the placing shares for the proposed initial listing of
shares of the Company on the GEM board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the directors of the
Company were authorised to capitalise an amount of
HK$4,399,000 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company by applying such sum towards
the paying up in full at par a total of 439,990,000 shares
for allotment and issue to the shareholders as of 27 June
2017.

On 19 July 2017, the Company has successfully listed on
the GEM board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and made an offering of 162,000,000 new shares
by way of placement and 18,000,000 new shares by
public offering priced at HKDO0.28 per share. On the same
date, the Company has completed the capitalisation
issue to the shareholders after the successful listing on
the GEM board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

This has resulted in the issued and paid-up share capital
increased from HKD100 comprising 10,000 shares at par
value of HKD0.01 each to HKD6,200,000 comprising
620,000,000 shares at par value of HKD0.01 each.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 June 2017, the
Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme. No option was granted as at the date of this
report.

On 1 August 2017, Telekom Malaysia Berhad has signed
and returned the formal agreement between the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary company, namely
Target Precast Industries Sdn Bhd, in respect of the
supply and delivery of concrete junction boxes and
junction box cover for a term of three years from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR RRME

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. AARWIBAMIREK

COMPANY

Information about the statement of Financial position of the RRRRBERRNTBRARNER B

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

&

2017
2017 &

RM’'000

A==
<A

Non-Current Assets kREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary company RSB RRINRE
Current Asset REBEE

Receivables, deposits and prepayment
Amount owing from subsidiary companies (Note a)

FEWRIR ~ e RIARK
JE WY /8 A~ R FOR (ffata)

Cash on hand and at bank FENMIRITIRS
Total Current Assets RBEEHAE
Current Liabilities FREEE

Payable and accrued charges FERRENERTER

Amount owing to subsidiary companies (Note a)

JEAST B 8 2 Rk IE (Mt a)

Total Current Liabilities REBEAE

Net Current Liabilities FRBAE

Net Liabilities =N

Capital and Reserves EXR#HE

Share capital %N

Accumulated loss (Note b) Rt EE (MaEb)

Total Equity fERBE

Notes Bt

a The amount owing from/(to) subsidiary companies are a PR (FERH) B A RSB AR - &
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRAKRERER -

b The loss for the period from 28 October 2016 (date of b M2016F10 A28 B (A2 B 83) &
incorporation) to 31 May 2017 mainly comprise the listing fee of 201765 A3 BHEARERE X Z8ER

RM6,048,000 incurred during the period.

HIREER LT EA6,0480009 % °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M RRME

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. RABMUMBARR K (&)

COMPANY (continued)
The financial position of the Company was approved and ARABH B EARRE R 2017 F8 A28 HE
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 August EETEMERKERT UEATIAL
2017 and are signed on its behalf by: REFEE -

Loh Swee Keong Tan Cheng Siong

Director Director

3 EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n _\éﬂjﬁﬁ‘?—% Bﬂ-%}

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. ARBWBMIBARR K (&)

COMPANY (Continued)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY NN B EE
Note: Bt -

Accumulated
loss
ZitER

RM’'000

-
<A

At 28 October 2016 (Date of incorporation) A2016F10 528 8 (FMA L BH) =
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the period HAEEREEEEERE (5,915)

At 31 May 2017 MH20175F5H31H (5,915)
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THREE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
= FBEHE

Year ended 31 May
BZESA3MALEE
RESULTS 2017 2016

ES 2017 & 2016
RM’'000 RM’'000

A A=
< H E4=]

Revenue WA 33,595 33,281 23,165

Gross profit EF 10,423 9,929 7,478
Profit before taxation R EL AR A 606 6,566 5,107
(Loss)/Profit for the year FRN(ER),HF (1,109) 4,895 3,846

As at 31 May
M5H31H
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2016

EERAME 2016
RM’'000

A=
~ A

Total assets BERE

Total liabilities BERTE 9,279 7,547
Net assets FEE 11,583 8,688
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#EE

Total equity HEmiBEE 18,483 11,583 8,688
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